
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
May 6, 2010, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the April 1, 2010 Board Meeting and the April 21, 


2010 Special Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 


C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence 
 







D. Adoption by reading of title only Ordinance 44, Making Changes to Policy 
Numbers 3020, 3080, and 3090 of the District’s Policy and Procedures Providing 
for Remedies for Water Bill Non-Payment and Meter Tampering 


 
Please note: Correspondence received regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda 
is not itemized here, but will be attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and 
addressed with that item during the Board meeting. 


 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 


the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Sonoma County Water Agency re (SCWA) Petition for 


Permanent and Temporary Urgency Change of Decision 1610 and what action, if 
any, the District should take, including presentation by Brenda Adelman (Est. 
time 30 min.) 


 
B. Discussion/Action re Resolution 10-09, Approving the Construction Project 


Budget and Authorizing the Award of Contract with KAT Construction for CIP 
Phase IV-B, Project 2, in the sum of $938,640.00  and Authorizing the General 
Manager Total Change Order Approval of $93,864 and Single Change Order 
Approval up to $25,000.  (Est. time 15 min.) 


 
C. Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 10-10, Adopting the FY 2010-11 


Operating and Capital Improvement Budget (Est. time: 15 min.) 
 
D. Discussion re Actual vs. Budgeted expenditures (3rd Quarter, FY 2009-10, 


Operations and Capital) and Monthly financial documents reviewed by the Board 
(Est. time: 15 minutes) 


 
E. Discussion/Action re Unneeded District lands strategy (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (Est. time: 15 min.) 
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
 (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 40 min.) 


 
A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of 


Section 54956.9.   
  Name of case:  John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros, et al. 
    SCV 240790 
 
 B. Conference with re Real Property Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.8) 
  Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
  District negotiator: Steve Mack; Property negotiator: Unknown 


 2







 3


  Under negotiation: Terms and price 
 
 C. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6): 
  District negotiator:  Steve Mack 
  Employee Organization:  Stationary Engineers Local 39 
 
 
IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
Regular Meeting  
April 1, 2010 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Jim Quigley 
 Gaylord Schaap 
   
Board Members Absent: Wanda Smith (arr. 6:55 p.m.) 
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Mike Gogna, District Counsel. 
      Pam Jeane, SCWA 
      David Manning, SCWA 
      Ken Wells 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Jim Quigley at 6:31 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 


p.m.) 
 
The GM pulled Item VIII-A, Closed Session Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, 
John Bruce Berry et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros. et al.  There were no objections. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
Director Wikle moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Robb-Wilder 
seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the March 4, 2010 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence 


 


 1







 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:33 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:33 p.m.) 


A. (6:33 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Letter dated March 11, 2010, from the Sonoma 
County Water Agency re (SCWA) Petition for Permanent and Temporary Urgency 
Change of Decision 1610, including presentation by SCWA staff.  The GM provided 
an overview of this item.  Pam Jeane of the Sonoma County Water Agency made a 
presentation.  Board discussion and questions ensued.  This item was scheduled for 
discussion at the May Board meeting.   


** Director Smith arrived at 6:55 p.m. 


B. (7:47 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2010-11 Operating and Capital Budget 
and Discussion of long-term effects of various rate strategies.  The GM made a 
PowerPoint presentation.  Brief discussion ensued.    


C. (8:06 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Unneeded District lands strategy.  The GM made a 
PowerPoint presentation.  Board discussion ensued.  Public comment was made by Ken 
Wells.  Further discussion ensued.  This item was scheduled for discussion at the May 
Board meeting. 


** At 8:52 p.m. the Board took a break.  The meeting reconvened at 9 p.m. ** 


D. (9 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Introduction by reading of title Ordinance 44, Making 
Changes to Policy Numbers 3020, 3080, and 3090 of the District’s Policy and 
Procedures Providing for Remedies for Water Bill Non-Payment and Meter 
Tampering.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Director 
Wikle moved to introduce by title only Ordinance 44, Making Changes to Policy Numbers 
3020, 3080 and 3090 of the District’s Policy and Procedures Providing for Remedies for 
Water Bill Non-Payment and Meter Tampering.  Director Smith seconded.  Motion carried 
5-0.  


E. (9:06 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 10-08, Waiving Policy 
3700.20 and Approving a Contract for the Replacement of Filter Media for the 
Monte Rio Filter.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  
Director Wilder moved to approve Resolution 10-08, to waive the bidding procedures of 
Policy 3700.20 based on the research and solicitation efforts undertaken by staff and 
instead approve the informal quotation procedures described in District Policy No. 
3700.70; and to authorize and direct the General Manager to execute a contract with 
ERS in the amount of $27,983.64 to replace the filter media at the Monte Rio filter; and to 
authorize an additional amount of $5,000 for contract contingencies; and to approve a FY 
2010 budget amendment in the amount of $32,983.64 for Operating Budget line item 
6235 Treatment Supplies/Well Repairs to cover the expenditure for this contract.  
Director Wikle seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.   


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (9:14 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided an overview and answered Board questions on the following subjects: 
 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 


 2







3. Leaks 
4. Rainfall 
5. CIP IV-B, Project 1 
6. Gantt Chart 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(9:19 p.m.) 


 
Director Wikle announced that the Russian Riverkeeper would be speaking about ludwigia at the 
Monte Rio Recreation and Park meeting on Monday at 6 p.m.  
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (9:20 p.m.) 
 
At 9:20 p.m. President Quigley announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 9:21 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  
 
** Director Smith left the meeting at 10:10 p.m. 
 
At 10:23 p.m., the meeting reconvened and the following action on the Closed Session item was 
announced: 
 


A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) 
of Section 54956.9 


 Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros., et al.  
  (This item was removed from the Agenda in Item II. above.) 
 


B. Conference with Real Property Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.8) 


 Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
 District negotiator: Steve Mack; Property negotiator: Unknown 
 Under negotiation: Terms and price  


  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 C. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54957.6): 
  District negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (10:24 p.m.) 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:25 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  


 3







 4


 
Wanda Smith:  ______________ _ ______  
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:33 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:33 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (9:14 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(9:19 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (9:20 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of Section 54956.9

		 Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros., et al. 

		B. Conference with Real Property Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.8)

		 Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville

		 District negotiator: Steve Mack; Property negotiator: Unknown

		 Under negotiation: Terms and price 





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (10:24 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
Board of Directors Meeting  
SPECIAL Meeting  
April 21, 2010 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Wanda Smith 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Ken McLean 
 Jim Quigley 
 Gaylord Schaap 
  
Board Members Absent: (None.) 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
   
Others in Attendance:     Glenn Berkheimer 
 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Jim Quigley at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 


II. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:30 p.m.) 
 
None. 


 
 


III. CLOSED SESSION (6:32 p.m.) 
 
At 6:32 p.m. President Quigley announced the item for discussion in Closed Session.  At 6:32 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session. At 8:19 p.m., the meeting reconvened and the following 
action on the Closed Session item was announced: 
 
 A. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6) 
  District negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 


 1







 2


 
 


Steve Mack 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


APPROVED:  
 
Wanda Smith:  ______________ _ ______  
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: _____ _______ _ ______  
Sukey Wilder:  ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______  ______ _ ______  





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:30 p.m.)

		III. CLOSED SESSION (6:32 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-D   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : May 6, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  CHANGES TO POLICY NUMBERS 3020, 3080, AND 3090 OF 
THE DISTRICT’S POLICY AND PROCEDURES PROVIDING FOR REMEDIES 
FOR WATER BILL NON-PAYMENT AND METER TAMPERING 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt, by reading of title only, Ordinance 44, Making 


Changes to Policy Numbers 3020, 3080, and 3090 of the District’s Policy and 
Procedures Providing for Remedies for Water Bill Non-Payment and Meter 
Tampering, and place on the May Agenda for adoption. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Minimal, but the proposed ordinance may help reduce the number of 


accounts referred to our collections agency and the proposed reinstatement fee 
and expansion to our tampering fee will add a small amount of revenue to our 
Water Sales. 


 
DISCUSSION: 


 
Staff recommends adoption of Ordinance 44 which was introduced at the Board 
meeting on April 1, 2009.  Staff made a presentation at introduction and 
responded to Board questions.  No changes were made to the introduced 
Ordinance.    If adopted at the May meeting, Ordinance 44 will become effective 
30 days after adoption on June 5, 2009.   
 
Below is the discussion from the April 1, 2009 staff report: 
 
District staff have identified four scenarios that are not addressed in our District 
policies: 
 


Scenario 1.  We send a property owner to collections for non-payment of 
their bill.  The owner later wishes to reopen the account.  Currently, we 
require the owner to pay off the collections agency and tender a $150 refundable 
collections deposit to the District before water will be restored to the account.  
However, the District still loses money because the collections agency keeps 40% 
of what they collect as their fee.  New policy 3020.121 would to require the owner 
to pay a reinstatement fee to the District in addition to the $150 collections 
deposit before they can reopen the account.  The reinstatement fee would recoup 
the 40% fee retained by the collections agency.   
 
Scenario 2.  Same situation as Scenario 1, except this time the owner has 
been terminated for non-payment but has a tenant who wishes to reopen 







ORDINANCE 44, Remedies for Water Bill Non-Payment and Meter Tampering 2 
May 6, 2010 


 


the account.  Currently, the tenant would not be required to pay the owner’s 
past due amount or to tender a deposit.  Under new policy 3080.25, however, 
water would not be restored to the account until all past charges were paid.  In 
this situation, if the account had already been referred to a collections agency, the 
District would lose the 40% collections agency fee and would not have a deposit 
on file, but it would encourage the owner of the property to take responsibility for 
their past due account. 
 
Scenario 3.  Same situation as Scenario 1, except this time the owner has 
lost the property to a bank.  The economy has triggered a rash of foreclosures 
in the District.  Currently, the District has no policy that requires the foreclosing 
bank or real estate agent acting on behalf of a foreclosing bank to pay the past 
due amount of the foreclosed owner.  New policy 3080.25 would require the bank 
or their real estate agent to deal with those past charges if they wanted water 
restored to the property for clean-up or resale.  Policy 3080.25 is less drastic than 
filing a utility lien, but much easier to implement and, we believe, more effective.   
 
Scenario 4.  The District discovers an inactive account has been turned on 
and is using water, and may have damaged our meter/parts in the 
process.  Currently, policy 3090.20 only provides for assessing tampering fees to 
active customers.  However, sometimes District investigation leaves staff with a 
very good idea of who tampered with our equipment.  New policy 3090.20(e) 
would give the General Manager discretion to assess a tampering fee to the last 
customer or the owner if it makes sense based on the District’s investigation.   


 
Legal counsel has reviewed Ordinance 44.  If adopted, the new policies would 
tighten up District remedies for errant customers.   







ORDINANCE NO. 44 
 


AN ORDINANCE OF SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT MAKING 
CHANGES TO POLICY NUMBERS 3020, 3080 AND 3090 OF THE DISTRICT’S 


POLICY AND PROCEDURES PROVIDING FOR REMEDIES FOR WATER BILL NON-
PAYMENT AND METER TAMPERING 


 
  
  


WHEREAS, water bill nonpayment and meter tampering are ongoing issues that add extra 
costs onto the Sweetwater Springs Water District and its water bill paying customers; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff have determined that small changes to the District’s Policies and 
Procedures can firm up the procedures for addressing water bill nonpayment and meter 
tampering in a manner fair to all District customers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District has established policies for tenants nonpayment of water bills, but 
said policies do not directly address property owners’ nonpayment of water bills; and  
 
WHEREAS, the tampering with meters is frequently connected to nonpayment of water bills, 
in that nonpaying occupants of a property may tamper with its existing meter; and  
 
WHEREAS, the policies and procedure changes stated below address these issues in a fair 
way.   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District, County of Sonoma, as follows: 
  
Section 1. Policy Number 3020.121, Reinstatement Fee is hereby added as follows:  
 
 3020.121 Reinstatement Fee.  A reinstatement fee will be charged to any 
Owner, as defined in Section 3070.70(A), who wishes to reopen an account that has 
been referred to a Collections Agency due to non-payment by that Owner.  The 
reinstatement fee shall be equal to the amount paid by the District to the Collections 
Agency to collect past due charges on the account.  The reinstatement fee shall be 
in addition to the account set-up fee and a Collections deposit, as defined in Section 
3020.160.  
 
Section 2. Policy Number 3080.25 is hereby added as follows:  
 
 3080.25 Termination for Non-Payment May be Grounds for Not Re-
Opening an Account until Past Charges have been Paid.  An account whose last 
customer was the Owner of the property that is terminated for non-payment under 
3080.20(a) above shall remain inactive (Closed) and not have water service restored 
until all past charges have been paid unless the property has changed Owners and 
the new Owner is not a bank. 
 







Ordinance No. 44. Remedies for Water Bill Non-Payment and Meter Tampering 2 
May 6, 2010 


Section 3. Policy Number 3090.20 (e) is hereby added as follows:  
 
 3090.20 Damage to District's Meter:  It is unlawful for any person to 
remove, replace, alter or damage any water meter or components thereof, including, 
but not limited to, the meter face, its dials or other water-usage indicators, and any 
flow restricting device installed pursuant to this Code. Tampering is defined to 
include the unauthorized operation of District valves, meter stop or other property as 
well as the installation of "jumpers" or connection to a service connection for the 
purpose of unauthorized acquisition of water.  If a consumer removes, replaces, 
alters, damages or tampers with a meter, service pipe or other property of the 
District, the customer shall pay the following charges: 
 
  a.  A $150.00 tampering fee;  
 
  b.  Material cost plus fifteen percent handling charge for replacement 
parts; 
 
  c.  Labor costs plus applicable overheads. 
 
  d.  This section also applies to internal meter damage caused by flows 
in excess of meter operation limits.  In such event District may install a flow restrictor 
to reduce the flow rate to maintain safe meter operation limits.  A fifty dollar ($50.00) 
fee will be charged for the installation, or removal, of a flow restrictor. 
 
  e. If tampering occurs on a Closed or an Inactive account, a 
tampering fee and/or time and materials costs may be assessed to either the last 
customer or the property owner if, in the discretion of the General Manager, such 
fees and/or costs are appropriate based on all the facts and circumstances. 
 


Section 4.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause of phrase of this Ordinance is for 
any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such 
decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of the Ordinance.  The Board 
hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each section, subsection, 
sentence, clause and phrase thereof irrespective of the fact that one or more sections, 
subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases may be held invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
 
Section 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after the 
date of its adoption by the Board of Directors.  
 
This Ordinance was introduced on April 1, 2010,  and adopted this 6th day of May 2010, on 
roll call by the following vote: 
  
 Jim Quigley    
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 Victoria Wikle:    
 Wanda Smith:    







Ordinance No. 44. Remedies for Water Bill Non-Payment and Meter Tampering 3 
May 6, 2010 


 Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______ 
     
           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
  
  
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 





		Item III-D Staff report re Ord 44, Owner non-payment issues

		Meeting Date : May 6, 2010 



		Item III-D.1 ORD 44 - OwnerNonPayment






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : May 6, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  SONOMA COUNTY WATER AGENCY (SCWA) PETITION TO CHANGE 
WATER RIGHTS DECISION 1610    
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  a. Receive a presentation from Brenda Adelman, 
Russian River Watershed Protection Committee, regarding the SCWA petition to change 
Water Rights Decision 1610 (D1610). 


 
b.  Discuss and consider action on filing a protest to the petition to change 


D1610. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  Possible legal and analysis costs.   


 
DISCUSSION: 


 
At the April meeting the Board heard a presentation by Pam Jeane, Operations 
Manager for SCWA, regarding SCWA’s petition to change D1610.  At that meeting 
it was announced that the filing deadline had been moved to May 13, 2010.  
Since we have the extra time, the Board asked to have this item placed on the 
May Board meeting agenda.  Board President Quigley asked Brenda Adelman, 
Russian River Watershed Protection Committee, to give a short presentation on 
her views of the change petition. 
 
The discussion from the April report is copied verbatim below.  Some additional 
thoughts on the change petition: 
 


• Since the change petition is based on Biological Opinion required flows that 
are experimental, perhaps the flow regime should have a time period, 
perhaps five or ten years, during which period SCWA does not have to 
request a Temporary Urgency Change Petition on an annual basis and have 
some kind of reporting requirement.   


 
• The value of submitting a protest is that it ensures that the District will 


have standing in the water rights process before the State Board.  The 
District, or any other member of the public will be a part of the 
environmental review process regardless of submitting a protest.   


 
• The principal point of a protest would be that D1610 needs a complete  


review based on the changes in the watershed since the last revision of 







SCWA PETITION TO CHANGE D1610    2   
May 6, 2010                                                                 


D1610, and, based on that review, possibly more and different changes 
than proposed by the current petition. 


 
 
Discussion from April Agenda Report: 
 
D1610 is the State Water Resources Control Board water rights decision that 
governs flows in the Russian River.  It mandates flows at various locations in the 
Russian River at various times of the year.  The triggers for the various flows are 
based in part by water levels in Lake Mendocino and Lake Sonoma and on 
seasonal water needs.  Flow in the Russian River has historically been supported 
by diversions from the Eel River.  Those diversions have been decreased in recent 
years, but the flow requirements for the River and triggers for those flows haven 
not changed.   
 
Another recent change is the flow requirements required by the Biological Opinion 
(BO) on the endangered and threatened fish species in the Russian River.  The 
BO mandates that summer flows in the lower River be reduced below the D1610 
requirements to provide summer habitat for the endangered and threatened fish 
species.  My understanding is that these lower flows are expected to allow the 
sand barrier at the mouth of the Russian River at the ocean to remain intact 
which would provide for fresher water in the estuary behind the sand barrier and 
this would be better for oversummering salmonids (the fish species of concern).   
The petition to change D1610 requests that D1610 be changed to allow the 
minimum flows required by the BO and nothing else (Exhibit 1).  The public 
notice for the petition states that the deadline for protests to the petition is April 
12, 2010 (since changed to May 13, 2010, ed). 
 
Since the BO was issued, SCWA has been requesting Temporary Urgency 
Changes (TUC) to D1610 on an annual basis to allow for these lower summer 
flows.  This past summer the TUC requested lower flows associated with 
extremely dry conditions based on the water levels in Lake Mendocino.  These 
lower flows were not based on BO flow requirements and interestingly, the sand 
barrier, once opened by SCWA (work done by another arm of that agency), did 
not close up again until mid September.  Water users in the Russian River were 
required by the State Board to take extraordinary water conservation measures 
for an event that was not that unusual.   
 
The events of last year demonstrated that D1610 no longer works for the Russian 
River.  It was a low rainfall year, but not so low that emergency measures should 
have been necessary.  The Lake Mendocino water levels called out as triggers by 
D1610 no longer work.  The entire flow, monitoring, and triggering system needs 
a examination to determine what works best for the entire watershed, but that is 
not happening with this change petition.  Nothing in this petition will prevent a 
reoccurrence of last summer’s events given similar weather.   
 
There are many issues with the Russian River.  Changing D1610 to solve all the 
flow-related issues would be a monumental task, but it needs to be done.  SCWA 


 







SCWA PETITION TO CHANGE D1610    3   
May 6, 2010                                                                 


 


may have made a decision to request this relatively small change because the 
larger, needed task is too difficult, too expensive, and too uncertain (Eel River 
diversions may be further reduced in the future). 
 
Entering a protest to the petition means the District can participate in this quasi-
judicial water rights process.  It means the District would bear responsibility to 
present a counter position to the petition.  It would also take to Sacramento, 
before the State Water Resources Control Board, a discussion that perhaps could 
better be done here in Sonoma County.   
 
SCWA staff will be at the April 1 meeting to give a presentation on their petition 
and to answer questions.  The Board can consider the SCWA staff presentation 
and responses to questions as part of the decision of whether to protest the 
petition.   





		Meeting Date : May 6, 2010 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B.   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : May 6, 2010  
 
Subject:  AWARD OF CIP PHASE IV-B, PROJECT 2 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT                   
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 10-09 which conditionally awards the 
CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 construction contract to KAT Construction for a not to exceed 
amount of $938,640.00 and authorizes the General Manager to approve change orders 
for a total amount not to exceed $93,864.00 with no single change order exceeding 
$25,000.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $938,640, plus up to $93,864 in possible change orders, 
approximately 75% to be funded from Sonoma County Community  Redevelopment 
Agency (RDA) grant funding which was approved in December 2009 by the RDA  and 
25% from the Sweetwater Springs Water District Private Placement Loan. 


 
DISCUSSION: 


 
Replacement of aging water main infrastructure is an important activity of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District.  Toward that end the District has developed a 
multiyear capital improvement program that has prioritized the capital infrastructure 
that needs to be replaced or improved.  The District is currently working on Phase IV-B, 
Project 2 (Project 2) as described in Table 1 below: 
 


  Table 1.  FY11 Capital Projects - CIP IV-B, Project 2   


Alder Road, Pebble Way, & Heller Streets (MR) – On River 
Blvd, Alder Rd., Willow Rd., and Railroad Ave., replace 
existing mains and appurtenances with approximately 
6,000 lf of 6-inch water main, to complete loop.   $1,515,000  
    
2011 - CIP IV-B, Project 2 Total Cost Estimate $1,515,000  
RDA/RRROC Grant Funding Amount $1,095,000  
Private Placement Loan Funding Amount $420,000 


 
This construction project was advertised on April 15, 2010, and 10 bids were received 
and opened on April 29, 2010 in accordance with bid instructions.  The bidders and bid 
amounts are shown in Table 2 below.  Brelje & Race Consulting Civil Engineers (B&R), 
the firm providing design and construction management services for this project, has 







AWARD OF CIP PHASE IV-B, PROJECT 2 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT   2   
May 6, 2010                                                                 


 


reviewed the bids and determined that KAT Construction is the apparent low bidder for 
the amount of $938,640.00.  B&R has determined that KAT Construction has the proper 
licenses to perform Project 2 and appears to otherwise be qualified to complete Project 
2.  The bid of KAT Construction complies with the bid instructions and appears to be 
responsive.   
 
The work authorized under this contract is scheduled to start within 10 days of notice to 
proceed and, according to the contract, will be completed within 150 days of the notice 
to proceed. 
 
The contract amount is $938,640.00 which is $425,305.00 under the engineer’s 
estimate of probable cost of $1,363,945.00. As shown in Table 2, two other bidders 
were within $10,000 of the KAT construction bid, reflecting the excellent current bidding 
climate.   The staff recommendation includes authorization for the General Manager to 
approve up to $93,864.00 in total change order authority for work not anticipated by 
the contract with no single change order exceeding $25,000.  This contract will be 
funded approximately 75% by a grant from the RDA and 25% from the Private 
Placement Loan Fund.  The work is part of the District’s Capital Improvement Program 
and will provide important and necessary improvements to the District’s distribution 
system. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 10-09 which conditionally awards the CIP 
Phase IV-B, Project 2 construction contract to KAT Construction for a not to exceed 
amount of $938,640.00, based on the Board's determination that KAT Construction is a 
responsible bidder and the bid submitted by KAT Construction is responsive, and 
authorizes the General Manager to approve change orders for an amount not to exceed 
$93,864.00, with no single change order exceeding $25,000.   The conditions of the bid 
award include KAT Construction's timely delivering a duly executed Project contract and 
submitting all required documents, including properly executed bonds, certificates of 
insurance and endorsements, pursuant to the Project bid documents. 
   


 







Sweetwater Springs Water District


CIP Phase IV-B Project 2- Distribution System Improvements


Bid Tabulation


Bid Date: April 29, 2010


1 6-Inch Water Main (Type A Trench) 4,410 LF $45 $198,450 $49 $213,885 $48 $211,680 $61 $268,128 $51.10 $225,351


2 6-Inch Water Main (Type B Trench) 1,507 LF $45 $67,815 $37 $55,759 $60 $90,420 $28 $42,196 $42 $63,294


3
6-Inch Water Main Directional 
Drilled Installation 700 LF $65 $45,500 $80 $56,000 $75 $52,500 $53 $37,100 $62 $43,400


4
Sleeve 4-Inch Water Main Through 
Existing 6-Inch 1 LS $9,560 $9,560 $6,500 $6,500 $1,050 $1,050 $3,400 $3,400 $1,600 $1,600


5 4-Inch Water Main (Type C Trench) 30 LF $45 $1,350 $50 $1,500 $30 $900 $44 $1,320 $45 $1,350


6 2-Inch Water Main (Type A Trench) 453 LF $40 $18,120 $25 $11,325 $38 $17,214 $31 $14,043 $36 $16,308


7
6-Inch DIP Water Main on Bridge 
TR-Flex 1 LS $22,000 $22,000 $18,250 $18,250 $15,000 $15,000 $21,500 $21,500 $14,100 $14,100


8 6-Inch Gate Valve 29 EA $1,320 $38,280 $1,050 $30,450 $1,000 $29,000 $1,085 $31,465 $1,015 $29,435
9 4-Inch Gate Valve 1 EA $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $750 $750 $935 $935 $1,035 $1,035


10 2-Inch Gate Valve 1 EA $1,000 $1,000 $650 $650 $600 $600 $600 $600 $565 $565
11 3/4-Inch Water Service (std.) 103 EA $1,550 $159,650 $1,250 $128,750 $1,100 $113,300 $1,280 $131,840 $1,200 $123,600


12
3/4-Inch Water Service Installed on 
Existing Main 36 EA $1,150 $41,400 $1,450 $52,200 $1,300 $46,800 $1,440 $51,840 $1,500 $54,000


13 1-Inch Water Service 3 EA $1,350 $4,050 $1,725 $5,175 $1,400 $4,200 $2,145 $6,435 $2,700 $8,100


14
2-Inch and Smaller Water Main Tie-
In 1 EA $750 $750 $2,000 $2,000 $1,300 $1,300 $2,160 $2,160 $640 $640


15 Water Main Tie-In 10 EA $2,150 $21,500 $2,700 $27,000 $2,500 $25,000 $3,000 $30,000 $2,600 $26,000


16
Sleeve 1-Inch CTS Through 
Existing 6-Inch 1 LS $5,000 $5,000 $1,550 $1,550 $1,000 $1,000 $3,450 $3,450 $1,580 $1,580


17 Fire Hydrant 9 EA $4,150 $37,350 $4,500 $40,500 $4,200 $37,800 $3,600 $32,400 $4,100 $36,900


18
Replace Fire Hydrant on Existing 
Main 3 EA $4,550 $13,650 $6,200 $18,600 $4,200 $12,600 $6,400 $19,200 $4,300 $12,900


19 Wharf Hydrant 1 EA $1,850 $1,850 $2,100 $2,100 $2,000 $2,000 $1,600 $1,600 $1,760 $1,760
20 Bollard 26 EA $100 $2,600 $236 $6,136 $197 $5,122 $250 $6,500 $270 $7,020
21 Air Release Valve 2 EA $1,750 $3,500 $1,950 $3,900 $1,700 $3,400 $2,180 $4,360 $2,560 $5,120


22
Water Main Lowering Greater Than 
18-Inches 3 EA $1,450 $4,350 $4,000 $12,000 $2,200 $6,600 $3,800 $11,400 $3,400 $10,200


23 Sheeting and Shoring 1 LS $250 $250 $300 $300 $1 $1 $500 $500 $1 $1
24 Abandon Gate Valve 11 EA $250 $2,750 $150 $1,650 $100 $1,100 $290 $3,190 $350 $3,850
25 Abandon Fire Hydrant 2 EA $250 $500 $450 $900 $100 $200 $265 $530 $1,000 $2,000
26 Abandon Wharf Hydrant 8 EA $250 $2,000 $60 $480 $100 $800 $265 $2,120 $900 $7,200
27 Abandon Bridge Piping 1 EA $5,500 $5,500 $800 $800 $1,000 $1,000 $1,200 $1,200 $1,900 $1,900
28 Abandon Blow-off 1 EA $250 $250 $165 $165 $100 $100 $265 $265 $975 $975
29 County Road Surface Restoration 190,000 SF $1.15 $218,500 $1.25 $237,500 $1.35 $256,500 $1.23 $233,700 $1.40 $266,000


30
Trench Through Stump Greater 
Than 18 Inches in Diameter 5 EA $350 $1,750 $500 $2,500 $100 $500 $1,200 $6,000 $1,000 $5,000


31 8-Inch Water Main (Type A Trench) 99 EA $85 $8,415 $50 $4,950 $100 $9,900 $71 $7,029 $67 $6,633


TOTAL BID (ITEMS 1-31)


Item No. Item


Estimated 


Quantity TotalUnit


KAT Construction


Unit Cost Total Unit Cost Total


Western 


Engineering 


Unit 


Cost Total


Argonaut 


Constructors


Unit Cost Total


W. R. Forde


Unit Cost


$944,475.00$938,640.00 $948,337.00 $976,406.00 $977,817.00


North Bay 


Construction



jkenny

Typewritten Text

Table 2







Sweetwater Springs Water District


CIP Phase IV-B Project 2- Distribution System Improvements


Bid Tabulation


Bid Date: April 29, 2010


1 6-Inch Water Main (Type A Trench) 4,410 LF


2 6-Inch Water Main (Type B Trench) 1,507 LF


3
6-Inch Water Main Directional 
Drilled Installation 700 LF


4
Sleeve 4-Inch Water Main Through 
Existing 6-Inch 1 LS


5 4-Inch Water Main (Type C Trench) 30 LF


6 2-Inch Water Main (Type A Trench) 453 LF


7
6-Inch DIP Water Main on Bridge 
TR-Flex 1 LS


8 6-Inch Gate Valve 29 EA
9 4-Inch Gate Valve 1 EA


10 2-Inch Gate Valve 1 EA
11 3/4-Inch Water Service (std.) 103 EA


12
3/4-Inch Water Service Installed on 
Existing Main 36 EA


13 1-Inch Water Service 3 EA


14
2-Inch and Smaller Water Main Tie-
In 1 EA


15 Water Main Tie-In 10 EA


16
Sleeve 1-Inch CTS Through 
Existing 6-Inch 1 LS


17 Fire Hydrant 9 EA


18
Replace Fire Hydrant on Existing 
Main 3 EA


19 Wharf Hydrant 1 EA
20 Bollard 26 EA
21 Air Release Valve 2 EA


22
Water Main Lowering Greater Than 
18-Inches 3 EA


23 Sheeting and Shoring 1 LS
24 Abandon Gate Valve 11 EA
25 Abandon Fire Hydrant 2 EA
26 Abandon Wharf Hydrant 8 EA
27 Abandon Bridge Piping 1 EA
28 Abandon Blow-off 1 EA
29 County Road Surface Restoration 190,000 SF


30
Trench Through Stump Greater 
Than 18 Inches in Diameter 5 EA


31 8-Inch Water Main (Type A Trench) 99 EA


TOTAL BID (ITEMS 1-31)


Item No. Item


Estimated 


Quantity Unit


$51.25 $226,012.50 $55.00 $242,550 $65.00 $286,650 $78.00 $343,980 $56.00 $246,960


$47.10 $70,979.70 $50.00 $75,350 $48.50 $73,090 $53.00 $79,871 $50.00 $75,350


$45.75 $32,025.00 $50.00 $35,000 $55.00 $38,500 $73.00 $51,100 $50.00 $35,000


$5,440.50 $5,440.50 $1,500.00 $1,500 $6,850.00 $6,850 $8,000.00 $8,000 $2,000.00 $2,000


$93.55 $2,806.50 $50.00 $1,500 $60.00 $1,800 $50.00 $1,500 $100.00 $3,000


$41.90 $18,980.70 $50.00 $22,650 $41.00 $18,573 $53.00 $24,009 $45.00 $20,385


$19,654.00 $19,654.00 $25,000 $25,000 $16,750 $16,750 $18,000 $18,000 $19,813 $19,813
$1,181.00 $34,249.00 $800 $23,200 $1,500 $43,500 $990 $28,710 $900 $26,100
$913.00 $913.00 $800 $800 $800 $800 $700 $700 $750 $750
$747.00 $747.00 $800 $800 $775 $775 $600 $600 $600 $600


$1,230.00 $126,690.00 $1,800 $185,400 $1,595 $164,285 $1,550 $159,650 $2,400 $247,200


$1,363.00 $49,068.00 $1,800 $64,800 $1,715 $61,740 $1,500 $54,000 $2,500 $90,000
$1,442.00 $4,326.00 $1,800 $5,400 $1,780 $5,340 $1,700 $5,100 $3,300 $9,900


$1,291.00 $1,291.00 $3,500 $3,500 $3,200 $3,200 $1,700 $1,700 $1,100 $1,100
$3,231.00 $32,310.00 $3,500 $35,000 $4,000 $40,000 $3,200 $32,000 $2,000 $20,000


$1,585.00 $1,585.00 $1,400 $1,400 $1,500 $1,500 $2,000 $2,000 $1,500 $1,500
$5,226.00 $47,034.00 $4,500 $40,500 $5,550 $49,950 $5,400 $48,600 $6,400 $57,600


$5,952.00 $17,856.00 $4,500 $13,500 $6,700 $20,100 $5,800 $17,400 $7,500 $22,500
$2,790.00 $2,790.00 $2,400 $2,400 $2,600 $2,600 $2,200 $2,200 $2,500 $2,500
$205.00 $5,330.00 $236 $6,136 $240 $6,240 $185 $4,810 $450 $11,700


$3,531.00 $7,062.00 $2,000 $4,000 $2,900 $5,800 $2,500 $5,000 $2,100 $4,200


$1,500.00 $4,500.00 $500 $1,500 $4,300 $12,900 $3,600 $10,800 $4,000 $12,000
$1.00 $1.00 $400 $400 $500 $500 $8,000 $8,000 $1 $1


$125.00 $1,375.00 $200 $2,200 $375 $4,125 $400 $4,400 $150 $1,650
$100.00 $200.00 $200 $400 $450 $900 $1,200 $2,400 $700 $1,400
$100.00 $800.00 $200 $1,600 $450 $3,600 $800 $6,400 $400 $3,200
$100.00 $100.00 $200 $200 $3,500 $3,500 $6,000 $6,000 $1,010 $1,010
$100.00 $100.00 $200 $200 $800 $800 $3,000 $3,000 $700 $700


$1.60 $304,000.00 $1.25 $237,500 $1.58 $300,200 $1.68 $319,200 $1.90 $361,000


$1.00 $5.00 $100 $500 $1,500 $7,500 $2,500 $12,500 $450 $2,250


$54.00 $5,346.00 $70 $6,930 $83 $8,168 $95 $9,405 $80 $7,920


Piazza Construction


Unit Cost Total


$1,023,576.90


Ghilotti Construction


Unit Cost Total


$1,041,816.00


Team Ghilotti


Unit Cost Total


$1,190,235.00


Math Error on Bid Item 
No. 12


Maggiora & Ghilotti


Unit Cost Total


$1,289,289.00


Pfister Excavating


Unit Cost Total


$1,271,035.00







Resolution No. 10-09 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT APPROVING THE CONSTRUCTION PROJECT  
BUDGET AND AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR THE CIP 


PHASE IV-B, PROJECT 2 TO KAT CONSTRUCTION IN THE SUM OF 
$938,640, AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TOTAL CHANGE 
ORDER APPROVAL OF $93,864 AND SINGLE CHANGE ORDER APPROVAL 


UP TO $25,000 
 


 WHEREAS, District staff, including the District Engineer, prepared construction 
bid documents and advertised for construction of the CIP Phase IV-B, Project 2  
(“Project”); and 
 


WHEREAS, District staff solicited bids for the Project on April 15, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 29, 2010, 10 bids were received and opened in accordance 


with the bid instructions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the lowest bid for the Project was from KAT Construction Associates 


in the amount of $938,640 and 
 
WHEREAS, staff has determined that the KAT Construction bid satisfies the 


bidding requirements for the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff has verified that KAT Construction possesses the required 


licenses and is otherwise qualified to perform the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from environmental review, pursuant to the 


California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) and Title 14, the California Code of 
Regulations (“CEQA Guidelines”), section 15301(b) and 15302(c); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the project involves the replacement or reconstruction of existing 
facilities and will result in negligible or no expansion of capacity; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the project has been approved by the Russian River Redevelopment 
Oversight Committee (RRROC), and the Sonoma County Community Redevelopment 
Agency (CRA) for approximately 75% grant funding, with the remaining amount funded 
by the District.  The District has adequate funds to fund its portion of the project funding 
amount; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notwithstanding the above-referenced bid amount, it is anticipated 
that the Project will have a certain amount of unanticipated construction issues during 
construction necessitating change orders; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is of importance to the contractor and District alike that 
construction not be unduly delayed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the General Manager is familiar with the project and will be 
monitoring construction. 
 







Resolution 10-09. Construction Contract for CIP IV-B, Project 2 with KAT Construction 2 
May 6, 2010 


 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the District Board of Directors 
hereby: 
 


1. Approves the Project construction contract in the amount of $938,640.00; 
and 


 
2. Waives any and all non-conformance in the bid of KAT Construction for 


the Project; and 
 
3. Finds the bid in the amount of $938,640.00 to be the lowest responsive 


bid and further finds that KAT Construction is a responsible bidder; and 
 
4. Awards the contract for the CIP Phase IV-B, Project 2 to KAT Construction in 


the amount of $938,640.00, the amount of the lowest responsive bid, conditioned on KAT 
Construction timely executing the Project contract and submitting all required documents, 
including, but not limited to, executed bonds, certificates of insurance, and endorsements, in 
accordance with the Project bid documents; and 


 
5. Directs staff to issue a Notice of Award to KAT Construction; and 
 
6. Authorizes and directs the General Manager to execute the Project contract 


on behalf of the District upon timely submission by KAT Construction of the signed Project 
contract and all other required contract documents, in accordance with the contract bid 
instructions; and  


 
7. Authorizes the General Manager to approve change orders on the Project 


without Board approval up to $25,000 per change order, with total change order approval 
not to exceed $93,864. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a 
meeting held on May 6, 2010, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Wanda Smith        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 





		Item V-B Award of Contract,  Phase IV-B, Project 2

		Meeting Date : May 6, 2010 



		Item V-B.1 - Table 2 - Bid Results

		Item V-B.2-Resolution 10-09 Award of Contract










SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 6, 2010 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR 2010-2011 OPERATING AND CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT BUDGET 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  A. Hold a public hearing on the proposed Fiscal Year 2010-


2011 (FY11) Budget;  
B.  Consider approval of Resolution 10-10 which approves the 
FY11 Budget 


 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  The FY11 Budget includes revenues of $4.46 million and expenses of 
$4.28 million.  The projected end of year Reserves Above Policy amount is $2.68 
million. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The FY 11 Budget agenda report comes with several attachments: 
 


• FY 11 Budget Report 
• Resolution 10-10 which approves the FY11 Budget 
• Exhibit A. FY 11 Detailed Budget which is the line item budget document with 


complete budget detail.   
 
The Draft FY11 Budget was presented and discussed at the March Board Meeting.  The 
Draft Budget came with several assumptions/results:  
 


• No Water Use and Base Rate Charges or Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) 
increases. 


• Less water will be sold in FY11, the revenue from the CDRC has been revised to 
match FY10 actual, and lower interest is expected, which results in less revenue 
in the Operating Budget (approximately $67,000 less than budgeted in FY10). 


• A small increase in Salaries and Benefits. 
• A small decrease in total Supplies and Services. 
• The transfer to the Capital Improvement Reserve Fund (CIRF) is $40,000 less 


than last year. 







Approval of FY11 Budget  2  
May 6, 2010 


• The major expense of the Capital section of the Budget is CIP IV-B, Project 2 
which is approximately 75% funded by a grant from the Sonoma County 
Redevelopment Agency (RDA), supported by the Russian River Redevelopment 
Oversight Committee (RRROC). 


 
District Reserves 
 
The FY11 Budget includes the District Reserve Policy approved in September 2009.   
 


• Budget Reserve – a reserve based on 10% of the Operating Budget expenses for 
emergencies, such as a natural disaster. 


• Economic Reserve – 15% of the Operating Budget expenses for economic 
downturn or other economic crisis. 


• Debt Repayment Reserve - 15% of the Operating Budget expenses to ensure 
funding is available to repay existing District debt. 


• Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar 
issues with the capital program. 
 


The FY11 Budget aligns District Funds amounts with the Reserve Policy.  The Operations 
Fund is reduced to $200,000 to align with the Operating Balance reserve.  The Operating 
Reserve is increased to include the approximate balances for the Budget and Economic 
Reserves.  The Capital Reserve and other undesignated reserves are in the CIRF and 
Redwood Credit Union certificate of deposit.  The FY11 Budget shows a Policy Reserve of 
$1,085,152 and $2,685,975 in Reserves Above Policy.   
 
Capital Improvement Planning 
 
At the March Board meeting the Board requested an analysis of the long-term effects of 
not having a rate increase for the FY11 fiscal year would have on the capital program. 
Figure 1 is one of the alternatives reviewed for the Board and shows that the District can 
complete the approved 2010-2015 Capital Improvement Program with small annual 
increases (Figure 1 shows 3% annual increases) in the years following this fiscal year 
and have a small positive amount in the District’s Reserves Above Policy in the last year 
of the planning period (FY15).   
   
The Draft FY11 District Budget and Budget Presentation were put on the District’s 
Website to make them accessible to District customers.  At the time of this agenda 
report, we had received no comments on the Budget. 
 
In summary, the FY11 Budget shows a funding plan will allow the District to accomplish 
its mission of providing good quality water to District customers, fund a major capital 
improvement project and end the year in good financial shape.  Water rates are not 
changed for this budget but future increases will be needed to stay with a plan to 
increase capital funding to a sustainable level and keep pace with increasing costs. 
 
 
 







Approval of FY11 Budget  3  
May 6, 2010 


FY 09-10
Projected FY 11 FY 12 FY 13 FY 14 FY 15


OPERATING BUDGET
  WATER BILL REVENUE Rate Increase


Water Use and Base Rate         1,796,000 1,770,000 1,823,100      1,877,793   1,934,127    1,992,151       3.0%
Capital Debt Reduction Charge**            227,000 227,000 227,000        283,750      354,688       404,300         see ** below


  OTHER REVENUE            131,000 119,200          120,000        110,000      110,000       110,000         
TOTAL REVENUE 2,154,000       2,116,200       2,170,100          2,271,543       2,398,814         2,506,451           


EXPENSES
SALARY & BENEFITS         1,035,010 1,051,800       1,083,354      1,115,855   1,149,330    1,183,810       3% increase
SERVICES & SUPPLIES            524,402 536,080          541,441        546,855      552,324       557,847         1% increase
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,559,412       1,587,880       1,624,795          1,662,710       1,701,654         1,741,657           


OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT 594,588          528,320          545,305             608,833          697,160            764,793              
FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES                5,700 1,050 20,000          20,000        20,000         20,000           one truck per 2 years
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS            547,000 507,000          510,305      573,833    662,160     729,793         


Transfer to CIRF  280,000  240,000    243,305  250,083   267,473    285,493 
TOTAL EXPENSES AND TRANSFERS 2,112,112 2,095,930 2,155,100 2,256,543 2,383,814 2,491,451


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 41,888            20,270            15,000               15,000            15,000              15,000                


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Net Operating Revenues* 321,888$        260,270$        258,305$           265,083$        282,473$          300,493$            
Total Assessments 782,000$        782,000$        782,000$           782,000$        782,000$          782,000$            
Capital Debt Reduction Charge** 227,000$        227,000$        227,000$           283,750$        354,688$          404,300$            
Capital Interest 60,000$          60,000$          75,287$             47,819$          26,015$            11,599$              
CDC Grants 899,250$        1,065,000$     
Private Placement Funding (Loan proceeds) 438,750$        440,000$        765,560$           -$                
Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 380,000$           1,030,000$     680,000$          470,000$            


TOTAL REVENUE 2,728,888$     2,834,270$     2,488,152$        2,408,652$     2,125,175$       1,968,392$         


Total Debt Payments 1,091,314$     1,091,314$     1,091,314$        1,091,314$     1,091,314$       1,091,314$         
CIP III 50,000$          85,000$          
CIP IV-A (Obligated)


CIP IV-B, Proj 1 CIPIV-B, Proj 2 FY 12 CIP FY 13 CIP FY 14 CIP FY 15 CIP
Annual CIP  $     1,328,000 1,475,000$     1,355,000$        1,265,000$     974,000$          807,000$            
In-House Construction Projects 40,000$          40,000$          40,000$             40,000$          40,000$            40,000$              


TOTAL EXPENSES 2,509,314$     2,691,314$     2,486,314$        2,396,314$     2,105,314$       1,938,314$         


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 219,574$        142,956$        1,838$               12,338$          19,861$            30,078$              


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


Funds above District Reserve Policy 2,530,465$     2,673,421$     2,295,259$        1,277,597$     617,459$          177,537$ 
Begining PP Loan


EOY PP LOAN 1,205,560$     765,560$        -$                   
Total Funding Available for CIP 3,736,025$     3,438,981$     2,295,259$        1,277,597$     617,459$          177,537$            
* Net Operating Revenues includes Transfers to Other Funds plus Surplus/Deficit minus CDRC and Transfers to In-House Construction and Building Fund
** Projection delays CDRC rate increases to FY13, 25% increase per year afterwards to max of $404,300 to pay for Private Placement Loan interest and principal


Figure 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District CIP Planning Budget, Including 3% Rate Increase in 
FY12 and beyond 


EXPENSES


 
 


 







Resolution No. 10-10 
 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING THE FY 2010-11 OPERATING 


AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET  
  
 


 BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District hereby adopts the attached FY 2010-11 Operating and Capital Improvement 
Budget and authorizes the General Manager to submit the attached budget to the 
Sonoma County Auditor. 
 


      
 


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of 
the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, 
at a meeting held on May 6, 2010, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Wanda Smith        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 







 
Sweetwater Springs 


Water District 
 


Annual Operating & Capital 
Improvement Budget 


 
2010-11 Fiscal Year 


(For the period July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011) 


 
 


Board of Directors 
Jim Quigley, President 


Sukey Robb-Wilder, Vice President 
Gaylord Schaap, Financial Coordinator 


Wanda Smith  
Victoria Wikle 


 
General Manager 


Steve Mack 
  







FY 2010-11 Budget  2  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Annual Operating & Capital Improvement Budget 


2010-11 Fiscal Year 
 


Summary 
 


Table 1 is a summary of the FY11 Budget which is described and shown in detail in the 
following pages.  The FY11 Budget is similar in form to last year’s budget.  Major 
changes include no rate increase to current water rates and inclusion of revenue from 
the Sonoma County Redevelopment Agency (RDA)/Russian River Redevelopment 
Oversight Committee (RRROC) for CIP IV-B capital projects. 
 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Draft FY11 Budget Summary


March 4, 2010
FY 08-09 
Actual


FY 09-10
BUDGET


FY 09-10
REVISED BUDGET


FY 10-11
BUDGET


Difference 
FY11-FY10


OPERATING BUDGET
  WATER BILL REVENUE 1,965,920 2,048,518 2,048,518 1,997,000 (51,518)     
  OTHER REVENUE        143,764        134,800 134,800              119,200              (15,600)     
TOTAL REVENUE 2,109,684  2,183,318  2,183,318        2,116,200        (67,118)     


EXPENSES
SALARY & BENEFITS 958,744 1,042,253    1,042,253           1,051,800           9,547        
SERVICES & SUPPLIES 526,516 545,450 545,450 536,080              (9,370)       
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,485,260 1,587,703 1,587,703 1,587,880           177           


OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT 624,424       595,615       595,615              528,320              (67,295)     
FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 38,636 5,000 5,000 1,050 (3,950)       
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 410,000 572,426       572,426              507000 (65,426)     
TOTAL EXPENSES AND TRANSFERS 1,933,896 5,000 2,165,129 2,095,930 (69,199)     


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 175,788       18,189         18,189                20,270                2,081        
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET


ASSESSMENTS 772,911 777,000 777,000 777,000 -            
INTEREST 95,156 95,000 95,000 60,000 (35,000)     
TRANSFERS FROM OPERATIONS 395,000 557,426 557,426 492,000 (65,426)     
GRANTS AND REIMBURSEMENTS 628,636 0 1,366,970 1,065,000 (301,970)   
PRIVATE PLACEMENT LOAN 1,363,536 1,052,000 661,695 440,000 (221,695)   


TOTAL REVENUE 3,255,239 2,481,426 3,458,091 2,834,000           (624,091)   
EXPENSES


DEBT PAYMENTS 971,236 1,091,314 1,091,314 1,091,314           -            
CAPITAL PROJECT EXPENSES 1,469,508 1,142,000    2,118,665           1,600,000           (518,665)   


TOTAL EXPENSES 2,440,744 2,233,314 3,209,979 2,691,314 (518,665)   
SURPLUS/DEFICIT 814,495 248,112 248,112 142,686 (105,426)   
DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES 
TOTAL Reserves EOY 3,372,311 1,769,902 3,652,274           3,761,127           108,853    
   District Policy 969,341 995,830 1,085,081           1,085,152           71             
   Reserves Above (below) Policy 2,402,970 774,072 2,567,193 2,675,975 108,782    
DISTRICT FUNDS


CIRF 1,606,129 1,192,604 1,839,242               2,334,572               495,330    
OPERATING RESERVE 225,000 225,000 225,000                  396,970              171,970    
OPERATIONS 770,352 603,609 788,541                  200,000              (588,541)   
CD 573,223 601,597       601,884                  631,978              30,094      
IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION 121,757 107,929 106,757                  91,757                (15,000)     
BUILDING 75,850 90,850 90,850                   105,850              15,000      


DISTRICT LOANS
Private Placement Loan 1,867,255 940,399 1,205,560           765,560              (440,000)    


 2 







FY 2010-11 Budget  3  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


Summary of FY11 Revenues and Expenses.  Figures 1 and 2 respectively 
show District FY 11 revenues and expenses.  Note that revenues are enhanced by over 
$1 million from the RDA/RRROC Grant, acquired in December 2009, and by $440,000 
from the $3 million Private Placement Loan (PPL) that was acquired in August 2008. 
which collectively fund the District’s FY11 capital projects. 


Figure 1.  Sweetwater Springs Revenues, FY11
Total - $4.46 Million


Water Sales,  $1,770,000 , 
40%


Interest,  $100,000 , 2%Assessments,  $777,000 , 
17%


PPL,  $440,000 , 10%
Other,  $79,200 , 2%CDRC,  $227,000 , 5%


RDA Grant,  $1,065,000 , 
24%


 
Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Expenses, FY11


Total - $4.28 Million


Capital Improvements, 
1,600,000, 36%


Salary and Benefits, 
1,051,800, 25%


Debt Repayment, 1,091,314, 
26%


Services and Supplies, 
536,080, 13%


 3 







FY 2010-11 Budget  4  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 
 


2010-11 Fiscal Year (FY11) Budget 
 
The annual budget of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) allows the 
District to accomplish its mission which is to provide its customers with quality 
water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective manner and to 
manage District resources for the benefit of the community and environment. The 
District achieves its mission of producing good quality water by pumping Russian River 
underflow from five wells – 3 located at the Guerneville El Bonita well site and 2 located 
at the Monte Rio well site.  That water is then treated in two separate treatment facilities 
at the Highlands site for Guerneville and at the Monte Rio well site and distributed 
through approximately 85 miles of distribution pipes and stored in 26 tanks and 
reservoirs.   This system is managed and its operation administered by the District staff 
of 10 full time employees.  The District has an aggressive capital improvement program 
aimed at maintaining and improving the capital infrastructure to deliver high quality 
water, reduce system water losses, and maintain adequate system pressure and 
fireflow.  The annual budget identifies the revenues and expenses that accomplish these 
tasks. 
 
The FY 11 Budget follows the format established for the FY10 Budget and 
includes no changes to the District’s water rates. 
 
No Change in Water Rates:   Most of the revenues for the FY11 Budget come from 
water rates paid in bimonthly bills by District customers (Figure 1).  Because of the poor 
local economic situation and a large grant from RDA/RRROC for CIP IV-B, Project 2, 
main replacement in the River Boulevard area in Monte Rio, District staff recommended 
and the Board has directed that there be no changes in water rates for FY11.   District 
staff did a comprehensive multi-year analysis to show how the District CIP can be 
completed and District reserves maintained by returning to small rate increases in 
following years.   More information on the District’s water rates and a water rate 
calculator can be found on the District’s website at www.sweetwatersprings.com. 
 
CIP IV-B, Project 2:  The FY11 Capital Budget includes CIP IV-B, Project 2, which is 
replacement of approximately 6,000 lineal feet of 6-inch water main water main and 
appurtenances on River Blvd, Alder Rd., Willow Rd., and Railroad Ave. in Monte Rio.  
This project is largely funded by the FY11 portion of the RDA/RRROC grant which is 
$1,095,000 (Table 2). 
 
District Reserve Policy:   A formal District Reserve Policy was approved in September 
2009.   The Reserve Policy allows the District to gauge its financial health and 
adequately plan for its future and allows ratepayers to follow this planning.  The District 
Reserve Policy has the following components: 


 
• Budget Reserve – a reserve based on 10% of the Operating Budget expenses 


for emergencies, such as a natural disaster. 
• Economic Reserve – 15% of the Operating Budget expenses for economic 


downturn or other economic crisis. 
• Debt Repayment Reserve - 15% of the Operating Budget expenses to ensure 


funding is available to repay existing District debt. 


 4 



http://www.sweetwatersprings.com/





FY 2010-11 Budget  5  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


• Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar 
issues with the capital program. 


 
The sum of all district funds is shown in the budget as Total Reserves End of Year 
(EOY).  This is the sum of the District discretionary funds, listed in the budget, minus 
$200,000 cash balance for operating purposes, at the end of the year.  The difference 
between Total Reserves EOY and Total District Policy Reserves is Reserves Above 
District Policy.  The District goal is to keep this number positive.  The amount above the 
District Policy Reserve is the amount the District has for future capital projects.  The 
Reserves Above District Policy is a good measure of where we are in funding an 
ongoing capital program. 


 
Other Financial Assumptions/Highlights of the FY11 Budget include: 
 


• No Water Use and Base Rate Charges or Capital Debt Reduction Charge 
(CDRC) increases. 


• Less water will be sold in FY11, the revenue from the CDRC has been revised to 
match FY10 actual, and lower Operating interest is expected, which results in 
less revenue in the Operating Budget (approximately $67,000 less than budgeted 
in FY10). 


• A small increase in Salaries and Benefits. 
• A small decrease in total Supplies and Services as this section has been 


scrutinized for expected costs. 
• The transfer to the Capital Improvement Reserve Fund (CIRF) is $40,000 less 


than last year. 
• The FY11 Budget projects the end of year Policy Reserve at $1,085,152. 
• The Reserves Above District Policy is projected to be approximately $2.67 million 


at the end of FY11.  This is a healthy balance due largely to RDA/RRROC 
$1,994,250 grant for capital projects acquired in December 2009 and the Private 
Placement Loan acquired in August 2008.  The Reserve balance will be needed 
in the coming years to fund the District’s Capital Improvement Program.  


• The Private Placement Loan balance, initially $3 million in August 2008, is 
projected at $765,560 at the end of FY11.   


• District Expenses are approximately $260,000 more than District Revenues.  The 
reason for this is the cost of the infrastructure projects of the Capital 
Improvement Program.   The difference is made up by loan proceeds from the 
private placement loan. 


• District Revenues are not sufficient to sustain annual capital improvements on 
the scale funded in FY11.  However, the RDA/RRROC $1,994,250 grant will 
allow the District to complete the approved 2010-2015 Capital Improvement 
Program.  Continuing capital improvements on this scale to improve District 
infrastructure will need to rely on grants or substantially increased rates, or the 
program will need to be reduced or delayed.   


 
Line Item Highlights of the FY11 Budget: 
 
The FY11 Operating Budget provides for ongoing costs consistent with previous 
years’ expenditures, except where identified below. 
 


 5 







FY 2010-11 Budget  6  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


The operating budget encompasses the “expenditures related to the operation, 
maintenance and repair of water facilities”, as well as the billing, collections, accounting, 
fiscal management and other overall administration. 
 
Water Bill Revenue line items have been adjusted to reflect no change in water rates 
and slightly reduced water sales.  Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) revenue 
has been reduced to reflect the actual revenue produced in FY10 as there is no change 
in the charge.  Operating interest is reduced to reflect continuing lower interest on 
deposited funds. 
 
Under Expenses, Wages are up approximately $15,000 to reflect a small increase in 
employee salaries.   Benefits are at a similar level to FY10 reflecting anticipated 
increases off actual expenses – based on midyear projections, Benefits were 
overbudgeted in FY10.  Wages and Benefits are a major District expense – 66% of the 
Operating Budget expenses. 
 
Total Supplies and Services are lower than the FY10 approved budget, but slightly 
more than the midyear projection.  There are small increases in several line items to 
reflect higher costs, but savings in others.  Office Maintenance is lower because 
computer maintenance has been less costly than expected.  Maintenance/Repair – 
Facilities is a big cost item in Supplies and Services and is higher in FY11 to reflect 
known needed facilities maintenance.   Governmental Fees is higher because fees 
charged by public agencies are increasing to reflect loss of revenue from other sources 
and the LAFCO cost was moved into this line item.  Professional Services continues to 
decrease (slightly) to reflect staff’s ability to keep consultants’ costs down.   Electric and 
Propane, another big cost item in this category, has been budgeted at the same amount 
for FY11.  .   
 
Fixed Asset Expenditures are a little lower than the FY10 level which is lower than 
historical amounts, because the District is not expecting to replace a vehicle in FY11.  
The expense for a new cut-off saw is included. 
 
The Operating Budget has a surplus of approximately $528,000 which is transferred as 
revenue to the Capital Improvement Budget as Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 
(CIRF), Building Fund, In-House Construction Fund, and CDRC revenue. 
 
The FY11 Capital Improvement Budget major expense is CIP IV-B, Project 2 which 
includes replacement of approximately 6,000 lineal feet of 6-inch water main water 
main and appurtenances on River Blvd, Alder Rd., Willow Rd., and Railroad Ave. 
in Monte Rio (estimated cost $1,515,000). 
 
Capital Interest revenue is estimated conservatively to reflect expected continuing low 
interest rates this coming year. 
 
Capital Debt is a major expense item – approximately $1.1 million and 26% of total 
District annual expenses.  District Capital Debt includes: 
 


• General Obligation Bonds – $12 million in bonds that were approved to purchase 
the District and make needed capital improvements.  Paid off in 2032.  Annual 
payment - $684,000. 


 6 







FY 2010-11 Budget  7  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 7 


• State Loans - two loans for approximately $3 million which were approved in 
1995-6 for needed improvements.  Paid off in 2021-2.  Annual payment - 
$170,168.50. 


• Private Placement Loan.  $3 million loan acquired in 2008 for needed capital 
improvements.  Paid off in 2028.  Annual payment - $234,012. 


 
CIP IV-B, Project 2 is funded by the RDA/RRROC grant and by the private placement 
loan (Table 2). 
 
District Reserves and Funds and Loan Balances show the District’s continuing 
healthy financial picture.   
 
As discussed above reserve balances are a good measure of the health of the District’s 
finances.  For FY11, District Policy Reserves are at $1,085,152 and Reserves Above 
District Policy at the end of the year are $2,675,975.   At the end of FY11, the loan 
balance for the private placement loan is projected to be $765,560. 
  
 
  Table 2.  FY11 Capital Projects - CIP IV-B, Project 2  


Alder Road, Pebble Way, & Heller Streets (MR) – On River 
Blvd, Alder Rd., Willow Rd., and Railroad Ave., replace 
existing mains and appurtenances with approximately 
6,000 lf of 6-inch water main, to complete loop.   $1,515,000 
   
2011 - CIP IV-B, Project 2 Total Cost Estimate $1,515,000 
RDA/RRROC Grant Funding Amount $1,095,000 
Private Placement Loan Funding Amount $420,000


 
 







EXHIBIT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS, 2010-2011


1


2


3
4
5
6
7


8
9


10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33


34
35
36
37
38


39


40
41


A B C D E F G H I J K M N O P Q
OPERATING BUDGET  


FY 08-09 
FINAL (CASH)


09-10
BUDGET


09-10
REVISED


FY 09-10
Projected


 FY 10-11
BUDGET 


Change FY11
FY10 


Revised NOTES
REVENUE


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Bill Revenue


4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Charge 169,568 252,426 252,426 227,000 227,000      (25,426)         revenue from current CDRC, no increase


4031.1. · Water Sales 1,796,352 1,796,092 1,796,092 1,796,000 1,770,000   (26,092)         
reduction based on income model reduction 
of 5% in total sales, no increase in rates


Total Water Bill Revenue 1,965,920 2,048,518 2,048,518 2,023,000 1,997,000 (51,518)         
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE


4445 · Grant Proceeds 0 0 0 0 -                  -                
1700 · Interest 54,731 50,000 50,000 50,000 40,000        (10,000)         lower interest rates


3600 · Construction New Services 12,088 6,000 6,000 6,000 5,000          (1,000)            


3601 · Construction Service Upgrades 2,677 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000          -                 


4032 · Rent 70,796 74,600 74,600 70,000 70,000        (4,600)           
4040 · Miscellaneous Income 3,472 2,200 2,200 3,000 2,200          -                


TOTAL OTHER OPERATING REVENUE 143,764 134,800 134,800 131,000 119,200 (15,600)         
TOTAL REVENUE 2,109,684 2,183,318 2,183,318 2,154,000 2,116,200 (67,118)         


EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages 635,500 687,229 687,229 692,408 702,200      14,971          Small Increase in salaries


5912 · Overtime 30,106 33,000 33,000 26,000 33,000        -                overtime hours should be going down some


5916 · On-Call Pay 24,147 26,436 26,436 26,870 26,500        64                 same as last year 


5918 · Extra help - Contract 32,175 32,000 32,000 33,280 33,500        1,500            includes received pay increase


Total Salary 721,928 778,665 778,665 778,558 795,200 16,535          
Benefits


5500 · Flex Spending -1,105 0 0 0 -                  -                
5920 · Retirement 90,771 98,797 98,797 96,900 98,600        (197)              
5920.1 · Retirement - Prior Service cost 0  0 -                  -                
5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 13,187 14,006 14,006 11,000 14,300        294               
5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 110,372 116,715 116,715 113,400 116,000      (715)              20% increase in health premiums in 2011


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 23,591 34,069 34,069 35,152 27,700        (6,369)           
High projected base on half year, current 
rates


Total Benefits 236,816 263,587 263,587 256,452 256,600 (6,987)           
Total SALARY & BENEFITS 958,744 1,042,252 1,042,252 1,035,010 1,051,800 9,548            
SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications


6040-I · Internet service 1,689 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800          
-                


Comcast -$70/month: 840
GotoMyPC $19.95/mo = $240
Sonic.net $143.7/Qtr. (A) = $575


6040-C · Cell Phones 3,179 3,100 3,100 3,100 3,100          


-                


SCADA - $65/mo. = $780
Verizon - $135/mo (F) = $1,620
Verizon $34/mo (A) = $408
Misc. parts/holders etc. - $200 (F)


6040-LD · Long Distance 538 700 700 700 700             -                AT&T - $50/mo = $600.  







EXHIBIT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS, 2010-2011


2


3


A B C D E F G H I J K M N O P Q


FY 08-09 
FINAL (CASH)


09-10
BUDGET


09-10
REVISED


FY 09-10
Projected


 FY 10-11
BUDGET 


Change FY11
FY10 


Revised NOTES


42


43


44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51


52
53
54


55


56


57
58
59
60


61
62


63
64


6040-P · Pagers & Radios 734 900 900 900 900             -                
Cook - $53/mo (F) = $636
Misc. parts/batteries = $200 (F)


6040-S · SCADA software maint. 413 0 0 500 500             
500               


Wonderware.


6040-T · Telephones 12,265 12,000 12,000 12,000 13,800        1,800            
Ans. Svc. $150/mo = $1800
Phones  $1,000/mo = $12,000


Total Communications 18,818 18,500 18,500 19,000 20,800 2,300            
Insurances


6101 · Gen. Liability 49,248 50,000 50,000 41,444 40,000        (10,000)         15% rate discount


6102 · Auto/Equipment 12,276 17,600 17,600 4,682 10,500        (7,100)           
Total Insurances 61,524 67,600 67,600 46,126 50,500 (17,100)         
Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 12,880 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000        -                 


6151 · Office Maintenance 2,194 10,700 10,700 8,000 4,800          


(5,900)           


Alarm System - $130/qtr.=$520
Shoretel maint. contract - $800/year
The Compute Wizard - $155/mo = $1860/year
Copy mach. maint - 470/yr
US Netcom - $900/yr


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 15,074 22,700 22,700 20,000 16,800 (5,900)           
Maint/Repair - Facilities


6085 · Janitorial Services 5,750 6,700 6,700 6,700 7,100          


400               


Altech (office Janitorial): $212/mo  = $2544
United Site Svces (port-o-lets): $200/mo = 
$2400
Sunrise Garbage $1150
Sewer - GVTP ($1000)


6180 · Distribution System Repairs 57,457 70,000 70,000 70,000 64,000        
(6,000)           


Includes $14,000 to inspect and clean 
sediment from bottom of ten tanks and $2,000
for repairs.


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 25,866 45,000 45,000 45,000 56,000        


11,000          


Includes $1,000 for an unexpected pump or 
mortor at the well field. 
Includes the cost to rebuild two MIOX chlorine
generation cells
(Does not include maintenance or 
replacement of filters at MRTP)


6143 · Generator Maintenance 21,265 3,000 3,000 3,000 1,200          (1,800)           (Non-scheduled maintenance year.)
Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 110,338 124,700 124,700 124,700 128,300 3,600            
Miscellaneous Expenses


6280 · Memberships 4,777 5,100 5,100 5,100 5,200          


100               


USA $150
AWWA $355
CSDA $3500
So. Cty EAC $70
MR Chamber -$50
Cal Rural $850
WCWW $150


6303 · Claims 638 1,500 1,500 500 1,500          -                 


6593 · Governmental Fees 8,234 12,000 12,000 12,000 21,700        9,700            


Dept of Public Health and State Board 
$12,000
Maps $50
Encroachment permit: $445
Elections costs: $4,000                                   
LAFCO $5200


Total Miscellaneous Expenses 13,649 18,600 18,600 17,600 28,400 9,800            







EXHIBIT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS, 2010-2011


3


3


A B C D E F G H I J K M N O P Q


FY 08-09 
FINAL (CASH)


09-10
BUDGET


09-10
REVISED


FY 09-10
Projected


 FY 10-11
BUDGET 


Change FY11
FY10 


Revised NOTES


65


66


67


68


69


70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79


80
81
82


83
84
85
86


Office Expense


6410 · Postage 16,384 17,000 17,000 17,000 15,000        


(2,000)           


Billing (2000 pieces @ $.44 X 12 months) = 
$10,560
Prop 218 mailing:  4000 X .44 = $1,760
1 extra mailing: 3600 X .44 = $1,584
Other mail


6430 · Printing Expense 7,226 5,250 5,250 7,500 6,500          


1,250            


Window Envelopes $950
Return Envelopes $950
Water Bills $1500
Doorhangers $175
Turn Off Notices $450
Letterhead $300
CCRs $600
Misc. Inserts $250
Prop 218 notice: $600
Newletter: $500


6461 · Office Supplies 7,209 7,000 7,000 6,000 6,500          


(500)              


Supplies $5000
Plants $150
Christmas Tree $80
Coffee services $50/mo = $600
Christmas party $400


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 907 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000          


-                


Press Democrat $200 (A)
Legal Notices $600 (A)
Sonoma West $40 (A)
Safety Meeting Outlines $80 (F)


6890 · Computers/Software 3,284 1,950 1,950 1,950 1,700          


(250)              


Antivirus software ($30X5) = $300
Misc. $400
Workstation for SM: $900


6579 · Furniture 161 1,000 1,000 600 500             (500)              Better table for office area


Total Office Expense 35,171 33,200 33,200 34,050 31,200        (2,000)           
Operating Supplies


6300 · Chemicals 11,613 14,800 14,800 14,800 16,000        1,200             


6880 · Tools and Equipment 5,216 5,500 5,500 5,500 6,000          500                


6881 · Safety Equipment 478 2,000 2,000 2,000 1,800          (200)               


Total Operating Supplies 17,307 22,300 22,300 22,300 23,800 1,500            
Professional Services


6083 · Laundry Service 2,545 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600          -                Mission $50/week = $2600


6521 · County charges 1,394 1,500 1,500 1,500 -                  (1,500)           moved to Government Fees and Accounting


6587 · LAFCO charges 4,469 4,700 4,700 4,761 -                  (4,700)           moved to Government fees 
6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 6,759 8,500 8,500 8,500 9,000          500                


6570 · Consultant Fees 24,689 25,000 25,000 17,000 20,000        


(5,000)           


IEDA $900/mo = $10,800
Digital Buffet $400/qtr = $1600
SCADA $1000
Computer Wizard (non-maintenance work) 
$600
Misc. (John Thompson) -$500


6590 · Engineering 2,611 2,000 2,000 1,000 1,000          (1,000)            
6591 · Engineering - re Cal Water 6,579 0 0 0 -                  -                
6610 · Legal 26,613 20,000 20,000 22,000 22,000        2,000            same as projected







EXHIBIT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS, 2010-2011


4


3


A B C D E F G H I J K M N O P Q


FY 08-09 
FINAL (CASH)


09-10
BUDGET


09-10
REVISED


FY 09-10
Projected


 FY 10-11
BUDGET 


Change FY11
FY10 


Revised NOTES


87
88
89


90
91
92
93


94
95


96
97
98
99


100
101
102
103


104
105
106
107
108
109


110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118


6630 · Audit/Accounting 17,255 18,000 18,000 25,000 * 22,000        


4,000            


ADP $260/mo = $3120
Authorize.net $55/mo = $660
Auditor $6,500 (we need to renew his 
contract)
United Bank $560/mo = $6720
West America fees $230/mo = $2760
Pam Rones 1099 = $250
Online Checks fee $30/mo = $360 
CountyAcnting fees $1000


Total Professional Services 92,914 82,300 82,300 82,361 76,600 (5,700)           
Rents & Leases


6820 · Equipment 1,146 2,000 2,000 2,000 3,500          
1,500            


Pitney Bowes Mail Machine $327/qtr. = $1308
(A)
A-Action rents $2000


6840 · Building & Warehouse 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000        -                
Total Rents & Leases 28,146 29,000 29,000 29,000 30,500 1,500            
Transportation & Travel


7120 · Seminars & related travel 3,579 4,500 4,500 2,000 4,000          


(500)              


JK - $250
LK and CMH - $400 
Field: $1,200 (as long at State provides 
expense reimbursement program


7201 · Vehicle Gas 20,897 16,800 16,800 22,000 20,000        3,200            Est. $1400/mo + extra


7300 · Travel Reimbursements 12,255 6,360 6,360 6,360 6,400          
40                 


SM - $50/mo = $600 (A)
KG $400/mo = $4800 (F)
CMH/LK/JK $80/mo = $960 (A)


Total Transportation & Travel 36,731 27,660 27,660 30,360 30,400 2,740            
Uniforms


6021.1 · Boots 1,136 1,330 1,330 1,330 1,330          -                $190 X 7 = $1330


6021.3 · T-shirts 1,068 1,200 1,200 1,215 1,200          -                
6021.4 · Jackets 181 360 360 360 250             (110)               


Total Uniforms 2,385 2,890 2,890 2,905 2,780 (110)              
Utilities


7320 · Electric and Propane 94,459 96,000 96,000 96,000 96,000        
-                


Electricity - Office $3000 (A)
Electricity - Field $90,000 (F)
Propane $3000 (A)


Total Utilities 94,459 96,000 96,000 96,000 96,000        -                
Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 526,516 545,450 545,450 524,402 536,080 (9,370)           


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,485,260 1,587,702 1,587,702 1,559,412 1,587,880 178               
OPERATING SURPLUS(DEFICIT) 624,424 595,616 595,616 594,588 528,320 (67,296)         


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8517 · Field/Office equipment 1,146 5,000 5,000 5,700 * 1,050          (3,950)           
Admin:  (None for FY 2009-10)
Field: 12" Stihl cut-off saw


8573 · Vehicles 30,777 0 0 0 -                  -                 


8570 · Furniture 0 0 0 0 -                  -                
8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 6,713 0 0 0 -                  -                 


8511.6 · Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0 -                  -                
8511.4 · Warehouse Improvements 0 0 0 0 -                  -                 


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 38,636 5,000 5,000 5,700 1,050 (3,950)           
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS -                


8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 170,000 252,426 252,426 227,000 227,000      (25,426)         same as CDRC revenue







EXHIBIT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS, 2010-2011


5


3


A B C D E F G H I J K M N O P Q


FY 08-09 
FINAL (CASH)


09-10
BUDGET


09-10
REVISED


FY 09-10
Projected


 FY 10-11
BUDGET 


Change FY11
FY10 


Revised NOTES


119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160


161


8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 200,000 280,000 280,000 280,000 240,000      (40,000)         based on bottom line, 


8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000        -                same as 10


8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000        -                same as 10


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 410,000 572,426 572,426 547,000 507,000 (65,426)         
DISASTER EXPENSE -                


5141 · Disaster Wages - Staff 0 0 0 0 -                  -                
7895 · Disaster Costs - Svces/Supplies 0 0 0 0 -                  -                


Total DISASTER EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 0 -                
SURPLUS/DEFICIT 175,788 18,190 18,190 41,888 20,270 2,080            


CAPITAL BUDGET
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Annual Assessment - New Services 23,497 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000        -                
Annual Assessment (County) 704,304 710,000 710,000 710,000 710,000      -                
Prior Year Assessment 45,110 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000        -                
Capital Debt Reduction Charge 170,000 252,426 252,426 227,000 227,000      (25,426)         
Interest 95,156 95,000 95,000 60,000 60,000        (35,000)         
Federal Grants 0 0 -                
Neeley Road Slide claim reimbursement 0 -                
County Reimb. for FEMA Viaduct Project 82,856 -                
Cal Trans Reimb. For Culvert Project -                
CDC Grants, CIP IV-A, Projects 1 and 2 545,780 -                
CDC Grants, CIP IV-A FY09 Carryover 437,720 437,720 (437,720)       
CDC Grants, CIP IV-B, Project 1 899,250 899,250 (899,250)       
CDC Grants, CIP IV-B, Project 2 30,000 30,000 1,065,000   1,035,000     
Private Placement Funding (Carryover) 1,363,536 222,945 222,945 (222,945)       
Private Placement Funding (CIP IV-B) 1,052,000 438,750 438,750 440,000      1,250            
Transfers to CIRF from Operations 200,000 280,000 280,000 280,000 240,000      (40,000)         
Transfers to State Loans from Operations 0 -                
Transfers to In-House Constr. from Operations 25,000                   25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000        -                
TOTAL REVENUE 3,255,239 2,481,426 3,458,091 3,397,665 2,834,000 (624,091)       


EXPENSES
DEBT PAYMENTS
Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 684,058 687,000 687,000 687,000 687,000      -                
State Loan Payments 170,172 170,300 170,300 170,300 170,300      -                
Loan to Neeley Road Slide claim -                  -                
Private Placement Loan 117,007 234,014 234,014 234,014 234,014      -                
TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 971,236 1,091,314 1,091,314 1,091,314 1,091,314 -                


Guerne Way Improvements
Tank/Facilities Improvements


1,100
Hwy. 116 ("S"Curves" Main Repl. And MRTP 
Bottleneck Pipe Replacement







EXHIBIT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS, 2010-2011


6


3


A B C D E F G H I J K M N O P Q


FY 08-09 
FINAL (CASH)


09-10
BUDGET


09-10
REVISED


FY 09-10
Projected


 FY 10-11
BUDGET 


Change FY11
FY10 


Revised NOTES


162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181


182
183
184


185


186


187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194


CIP III 35,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 85,000        35,000          
CIP IV-A 1,306,335 0
CIP IV-A, FY09 Carryover 660,665 660,665 (660,665)       
CIP IV-B, Project 1 69,601 1,052,000 1,328,000        1,328,000 (1,328,000)    
CIP IV-B, Project 2 40,000 40,000 1,475,000   1,435,000     
Crespo Tank Replacement Project -                
In-House Construction Projects 57,472 40,000 40,000 40,000        -                


Total Capital Expenses 1,469,508              1,102,000        2,118,665        2,118,665           1,600,000   (518,665)       
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,440,744 2,193,314 3,209,979 3,209,979 2,691,314 (518,665)       
SURPLUS/DEFICIT 814,495 288,112 248,112 187,686 142,686 (105,426)       


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES 


Operating Balance 200,000                 200,000           200,000           200,000              200,000      -                


Budget Reserve (10%) 207,736                 218,332           158,770           158,770              158,788      18                 
Economic Reserve (15%) 311,605                 327,498           238,155           238,155              238,182      27                 
Debt Repayment Reserve (15%) 238,155           238,155              238,182      27                 
Capital Reserve 250,000                 250,000           250,000           250,000              250,000      -                


   Total District Policy 969,341                 995,830           1,085,081        1,085,081           1,085,152   71                 Sum of policy reserves above


TOTAL Reserves EOY 3,372,311              3,099,581        3,652,274        3,615,546           3,761,127   108,853        Sum of District Fund balances below


   Reserves Above (below) Policy 2,402,970              2,103,751        2,567,193        2,530,465           2,675,975   108,782        
Difference between Total and Policy 
Reserves


DISTRICT FUNDS


CIRF 1,606,129              1,470,596        1,839,241        1,778,815           2,334,572   495,331        
balancing this fund to reflect reserve policy, 
includes capital and debt repayment reserve


OPERATING RESERVE 225,000                 225,000           225,000           225,000              396,970      171,970        
balancing this fund to reflect reserve policy, 
budget and economic reserve


OPERATIONS 770,352                 603,609           788,542           812,240              200,000      (588,542)       
balancing this fund to reflect reserve policy, 
operating balance


CD 573,223                 601,597           601,884           601,884              631,978      30,094          
IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION 121,757                 107,929           106,757           106,757              91,757        (15,000)         
BUILDING 75,850                   90,850             90,850             90,850                105,850      15,000          


DISTRICT LOANS
PPL 1,867,255              940,399           1,205,560        1,205,560           765,560      (440,000)       





		Item V-C - FY2010-2011 Budget

		Item V-C.1 - RES 10-10 Appr FY 10-11 budget

		Item V-C.2 FINAL Budget Report-FY 2010-11

		Board of Directors

		General Manager

		Steve Mack

		 Sweetwater Springs Water District





		Item V-C.3 Exhibit A. Capital and Operating Budget - 10-11 Detail

		Combined (FY11D)








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 6, 2010 
  
Subject: Actual vs. Budgeted (Operations and Capital) reports thru March 31 (75%) 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
OPERATIONS 
 
3Q Revenue is slightly ahead of budgeted figures.   
 
Total Water Sales, the largest revenue line item, remains slightly more than budgeted 
(76.31%).  This is due to conservative budgeting rather than robust sales.  (As of the April 
15th billing, water sales expressed in units sold are nearly 10 percent less than last year.)  
Construction New Services and Upgrades revenue are under budget as activity in this area 
has slowed down significantly.  Interest revenue is also down as interest rates remain low on 
our money invested by the County.  Overall, however, Operating Revenue is keeping pace 
with the budget.   
 
3Q Expenditures are less than budgeted. 
 
Two changes were made to the Operating expense budget in the third quarter: 
 


Retiree Health:  Of rising concern to all public entities is the rising cost of retiree 
health, and new accounting standards are required in this area for the FY 2009-
10 audit.  To prepare, our Auditor (Michael Celentano) recommended we break 
out our retiree health costs from the health insurance line item, both for 
compliance with the new accounting standards and for transparency on the cost 
of retiree health to the District.  Unlike many other public entities, the District’s 
retiree health costs are low -- $1,640 for FY 2009-10 as of the end of the third 
quarter. 
 







Actual vs. Budgeted (Operations and Capital) reports thru March 31, 2010 (75%)    2  
May 6, 2010 


Treatment System/Well Repairs: Budgeted expenses for the Treatment 
System/Well Repairs line item were increased in the 3Q in the sum of $32,984 
because of the sooner-than-expected need to replace the filter media in the 
Monte Rio green sand filter.   


 
After these budget revisions, total operating expenses are less than budgeted.  The quarter 
was uneventful expense-wise. Of small note, the District went overbudget in the Fixed Assets 
category by approximately $5,000.  In reviewing our budget notes, it is not clear what items 
rendered this line item overbudget, but in the 3Q a generator for the Schoeneman tank and a 
compressor were purchased, putting this line item overbudget for the year to date.  No further 
purchases are anticipated for this fiscal year. 
 
For more detail, please refer to the attached Table 1.  Actual vs. Budgeted - Operations 
breakdown provided with your packet. 
 
 
CAPITAL 
 
Table 2. Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2009-10 Capital Program Budget Variances 
as of March 31, 2009 (75%) shows the 3rd quarter capital revenues and expenses compared 
to the budget approved in May 2009 and the mid-year adjustment that was approved in 
February.   
 
This has been a slow quarter for the capital program in terms of funding activity – CIP IV-A 
was completed in the first half of the fiscal year and CIP IV-B construction hasn’t started yet.   
Of note, interest is substantially down for the year.     
 
MONTHLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
As part of this month’s quarterly discussion of Actual vs. Budgeted reports, staff is requesting 
review of the monthly and quarterly financial documents provided to the Board in an attempt 
to simplify and improve communicating the District’s financial picture to the Board.   
 
Currently, the Board receives the following documents each month: 
 1. Actual vs. Budgeted report 
 2. Operations Expenditures, including online payments, electronic fund transfers, 


and construction expenditures 
 3. Major expense/revenue summary 
 4. County accounts balances and Redwood Credit Union CD summary 
 
The monthly financial documents are not available until the day of the Board meeting, and 
are approved as part of the Consent calendar.  As such, they are seldom discussed, and it is 
unclear whether Board members even have time to properly review them prior to the meeting 
or if some reports are useful and others less so.  On a quarterly basis (for example, this 
report) staff reports on quarterly variances as part of the administrative agenda, including 
some of the items that are part of the monthly consent agenda item.   
 
 
 
Of note, it is appropriate that the Board approve District expenditures on a monthly basis.  
The District spends a lot of money, bills need to be paid in a timely way, many bills are 







Actual vs. Budgeted (Operations and Capital) reports thru March 31, 2010 (75%)    3  
May 6, 2010 


generated for payment at the end of the month, and monthly approvals are a minimum length 
of time between payment of bills.  There is a short amount of time between when the 
warrants are generated and the Board meeting on the first Thursday of each month, but we 
don’t see any alternative other than changing the date of the Board meeting (and we do not 
recommend that).    
 
Staff would like to discuss the possibility of reducing the monthly financial documents 
provided and expanding the quarterly discussion of District finances.  Our recommendation is 
that the monthly financials provided be reduced to include: 


1. Operations Expenditures, including online payments, electronic fund            
transfers, and construction expenditures 


2. Operations Expenditures cover sheet 
 3. Construction expenditures (County warrants request form) 
 
The quarterly financials provided and discussed would include: 
 1. Actual vs. Budgeted reports for Operations and Capital Improvements, 


including discussion of major expenses and revenues for the quarter; 
 2. Balances of our various accounts at the County and the Redwood Credit 


Union CD 
 
The WestAmerica accounting would be completely eliminated. 
 
Our quarterly report would be expanded to include discussion of the funds amounts. 
 
Please think about what financial documents are most useful to your understanding of District 
finances and bring your thoughts to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 


 
 







FY 2009-10 
Actual


2009-10 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Ordinary Income/Expense
Income


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Sales


4031.1. 2· Capital Debt Reduction Charge 174,597 252,426 -77,829 69.17%
4031.1 · Daily Water Sales Deposits 1,388,581 1,796,092 -407,511 77.31%


Total 4031 · Water Sales 1,563,178 2,048,518 -485,340 76.31% This is a cash water sales figure.   


Total OPERATING REVENUE 1,563,178 2,048,518 -485,340 76.31%  


NON-OPERATING REVENUE
4445 · Grant Proceeds 0 0 0 0.0%  
1700 · Interest 30,776 50,000 -19,224 61.55% Reflects interest earnings thru 3Q
3600 · Construction New Services 3,093 6,000 -2,907 51.56%
3601 · Construction - Service Upgrades 100 2,000 -1,900 5.0%
4032 · Rent 66,882 74,600 -7,718 89.65%  
4040 · Miscellaneous Income 3,112 2,200 912 141.44%  


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 103,963 134,800 -30,837 77.12%


Total Income 1,667,141 2,183,318 -516,177 76.36%


Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages 503,442 687,229 -183,787 73.26%
5912 · Overtime 18,135 33,000 -14,865 54.95%
5916 · On-Call Pay 19,675 26,436 -6,761 74.43%
5918 · Extra help - Contract 25,362 32,000 -6,638 79.26%  


Total Salary 566,614 778,665 -212,051 72.77%


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending (Flex spending monie 3,743 0 3,743 100.0%
5920 · Retirement 70,849 98,797 -27,948 71.71%
5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 10,880 14,006 -3,126 77.68%
5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 84,223 116,715 -32,492 72.16%


5931 · Retiree Health 1,640 0 1,640 100.0%


This line item was broken out from Health 
Insurance at the request of our Auditor 
(Michael Celentano) to comply with GASB 
45


*
5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 22,713 34,069 -11,356 66.67%


Total Benefits 194,048 263,587 -69,539 73.62%


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 760,662 1,042,252 -281,590 72.98%


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications
6040-I · Internet service 1,007 1,800 -794 55.92%
6040-C · Cell Phones 2,057 3,100 -1,043 66.37%
6040-LD · Long Distance 386 700 -314 55.19%
6040-P · Pagers & Radios 518 900 -382 57.6%
6040-S · SCADA software maint. 499 0 499 100.0%
6040-T · Telephones 9,366 12,000 -2,634 78.05%


Total Communications 13,833 18,500 -4,667 74.77%


Insurances


6101 · Gen. Liability 41,444  50,000 -8,556 82.89% Bill paid yearly and is paid for the year


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2009-10 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2010 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


 Page 1 of 4







FY 2009-10 
Actual


2009-10 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2009-10 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2010 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6102 · Auto/Equipment 4,682  17,600 -12,918 26.61% Bill paid yearly and is paid for the year


Total Insurances 46,126 67,600 -21,474 68.23%


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 4,769 12,000 -7,231 39.74%   
6151 · Office Maintenance 4,894 10,700 -5,806 45.74%


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 9,662 22,700 -13,038 42.57%


Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 · Janitorial Services 4,960 6,700 -1,740 74.03%
6180 · Distribution System Repairs 39,530 70,000 -30,470 56.47%  


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 52,485 77,984 -25,498 67.3%


In the 1Q, an unbudgeted rehab of MR Well
5 ($13,902) will leave this line item 
underbudgeted for the year.  Also this 
quarter, two large maintenance projects 
were done: (1) replace pump/motor for MR 
Well 4 ($7295) and (2) Video of El Bonita 
Well 5 ($9446).  In the 2Q, the El Bonita 
Well Rehab -- slated for FY 2010-11 -- 
became necessary this year at an 
unbudgeted cost of $12,076.  At the March 
Board meeting, the budget for this line item 
was increased from $45,000 to $77,983.64 
because of the need to replace the filter 
media in the Monte Rio green sand filter.


*


6143 · Generator Maintenance 350 3,000 -2,650 11.67%  


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 97,325 157,684 -60,359 61.72%


Miscellaneous Expenses
6280 · Memberships 4,729 5,100 -371 92.73%  
6303 · Claims 0 1,500 -1,500 0.0%  


6593 · Governmental Fees 15,565 12,000 3,565 129.71%


1Q expense includes water system fees,
paid twice yearly.  Always hard to predict, 
system fees were higher than anticipated 
this year, leaving this line item 
underbudgeted.


 
Total Miscellaneous Expenses 20,294 18,600 1,694 109.11%


Office Expense
6410 · Postage 9,185 17,000 -7,815 54.03%


6430 · Printing Expense 6,444 5,250 1,194 122.74%


Bills and envelopes are purchased in yearly 
quantities.  Unbudgeted costs of meter 
reading pages ($497), Auto-pay bills (app. 
$250), tag books (app. $900), and other 
smaller print jobs will leave this line item 
underbudgeted for the year.


 
6461 · Office Supplies 3,875 7,000 -3,125 55.36%
6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 759 1,000 -241 75.91%
6890 · Computers/Software 1,124 1,950 -826 57.63%
6579 · Furniture 664 1,000 -336 66.44%


Total Office Expense 22,051 33,200 -11,149 66.42%


Operating Supplies
6300 · Chemicals 13,923 14,800 -877 94.07%  
6880 · Tools and Equipment 2,844 5,500 -2,656 51.7%


 Page 2 of 4







FY 2009-10 
Actual


2009-10 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2009-10 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2010 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6881 · Safety Equipment 829 2,000 -1,171 41.45%
Total Operating Supplies 17,595 22,300 -4,705 78.9%


Professional Services
6083 · Laundry Service 1,858 2,600 -742 71.48%  
6521 · County charges 338 1,500 -1,162 22.51%  
6587 · County LAFCO charges 4,761 4,700 61 101.3% Bill is pd yearly and is paid for the year
6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 5,253 8,500 -3,247 61.8%


6570 · Consultant Fees 11,321 25,000 -13,679 45.28%   
6590 · Engineering 425 2,000 -1,575 21.26%  


6610 · Legal 14,173 20,000 -5,827 70.87%
In the 1Q and 2Q, the Berry/Korbel litigation 
and the cell tower negotiations are leaving 
legal expenses slightly overbudget.


 
6630 · Audit/Accounting 15,297 18,000 -2,703 84.98%  


Total Professional Services 53,426 82,300 -28,874 64.92%


Rents & Leases
6820 · Equipment 1,197 2,000 -803 59.85%
6840 · Building & Warehouse 22,500 27,000 -4,500 83.33%   


Total Rents & Leases 23,697 29,000 -5,303 81.71%


Transportation & Travel
7120 · Seminars & related travel 1,237 4,500 -3,263 27.5%
7201 · Vehicle Gas 16,408 16,800 -392 97.66%


7300 · Travel Reimbursements 4,053 6,360 -2,307 63.72%
  


Total Transportation & Travel 21,698 27,660 -5,962 78.44%


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 680 1,330 -650 51.15%


6021.3 · T-shirts 1,215 1,200 15 101.26% T-shirts are purchased once yearly
6021.4 · Jackets 272 360 -88 75.43%


Total Uniforms 2,167 2,890 -723 74.98%


Utilities
7320 · Electric and Propane 73,227 96,000 -22,773 76.28%  


Total Utilities 73,227 96,000 -22,773 76.28%


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 401,102 578,434 -177,332 69.34%


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,161,763 1,620,686 -458,922 71.68%


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8517 · Field/office equipment 10,507 5,000 5,507 210.14%


In the 3Q, the District purchased a 
generator for the Schoeneman tank 
($3,413) and a compressor ($1,464).  We 
have no detailed list of what was budgeted 
for this line item so it is unclear what was 
budgeted and unbudgeted, but no further 
purchases are anticipated for this line item.


*


 Page 3 of 4







FY 2009-10 
Actual


2009-10 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2009-10 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2010 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


8573 · Vehicles 0 0 0 0.0%  


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 10,507 5,000 5,507 210.14%


Total Expense 1,172,270 1,625,686 -453,415 72.11%


Net Ordinary Income 494,870 557,632 -62,762 88.75%


Other Income/Expense
Other Expense


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 0 252,426 -252,426 0.0%
8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 280,000 280,000 0 100.0%
8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000 0 100.0%
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 320,000 572,426 -252,426 55.9%


 Page 4 of 4







 Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2009-10 Capital Program Budget Variances as of March 31, 2010 (75%)


FY 09-10
ACTUAL


FY 09-10
BUDGET


FY 09-10
REVISED 
BUDGET


$ Over 
Revised 


Budget for 
Year


% of 
Budget Comments


REVENUE


Annual Assessment - New Services 14,658 27,000 27,000 -12,342 54.3% due second installment soon
Annual Assessment (County) 391,701 710,000 710,000 -318,299 55.2% "  "
Prior Year Assessment 19,257 40,000 40,000 -20,743 48.1% "   "
Capital Debt Reduction Charge 0 252,426 252,426 -252,426 0.0% Transfer at end of year
Interest 25,892 95,000 95,000 -69,108 27.3% off considerably
Cal Trans Reimb. For Culvert Project 52,547 0 0 52,547 NA Received in 1st Q


CDC Grants, CIP IV-A, FY09 carryover 437,720 0 437,720 0 100.0%
Reimbursements for FY09 CIP IV-A, 
carried over into FY10


CDC Grants, CIP IV-B, Project 1 7,754 899,250 -891,496 0.9% CDC Grant Approved


CDC Grants, CIP IV-B, Project 2 30,000 -30,000 0.0%
Reimbursements for CIP IV-B, Project 2 
design


659,239 222,945 436,294 295.7%


123,158 1,052,000 438,750
-315,592 28.1%


CDC Grant, Bonita Terrace, FY09 
Carryover


Transfers to CIRF from Operations 280,000 280,000 280,000 0 100.0% End of year transfer, CDRC subtracted 


25,000 25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


TOTAL REVENUE 2,036,926 2,481,426 3,458,091 -1,421,165 58.9%


EXPENSES   


Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 687,375 687,000 687,000 375 100.1%
State Loan Payments 170,172 170,300 170,300 -128 99.9%
Private Placement Loan 234,013 234,014 234,014 -1 100.0% 2 payments made
CIP III 50,000 50,000 50,000 0 100.0% Settlement payment


CIP IV-A 659,239 0 660,665
-1,426 99.8%


CIP IV-A, Project 1 completed; Project 2 
started in May, carried over into FY10


CIP IV-B, Project 1 121,578 1,052,000 1,328,000       -1,206,422 9.2% Added Bonita Terrace
CIP IV-B, Project 2 1,581 40,000 -38,419 4.0% Anticipate design costs
In-House Construction Projects 15,983 40,000 40,000 -24,017 40.0%


TOTAL EXPENSES 1,939,940 2,233,314 3,209,979 -1,270,039 60.4%


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 96,985  248,112 248,112 -151,127 39.1%


Private Placement Funding (CIP IV-B)


Transfers to In-House Constr. from 
Operations


Private Placement Funding (FY09 
Carryover)





		Item V-D - Staff report re Actual v Budgeted - 3Q 2009-10

		Item V-D.1 Budget variances as of 03-31-2010 (75%)

		Sheet1 (2)



		Item V-D.2  - Budget Variances - Cap Imp - FY 09-10 3Q

		Revised








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : May 6, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE UNNEEDED DISTRICT LANDS   
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation on the progress of the Land 
Management Committee and Other Activities regarding Unneeded District Lands and 
provide direction to the Committee and General Manager.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No direct impact. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 


At the April meeting the General Manager gave a presentation on the progress 
made in moving forward with an Unneeded District Lands Strategy.  At the 
meeting the Board agreed with the following general strategy: 
 
Purpose:  The District will divest itself of unneeded property with the purposes of 


• Proper management of lands, 
• Maintaining community values of river access and open space, 
• Reducing District liability, 
• Reducing staff time dealing with property issues, 
• Producing income which is a goal but not a requirement. 


 
1.  Explore river access and trail possibilities with local Recreation and Park 


Districts 
2. Keep revenue producing parcels (Mount Jackson tower sites) 
3. For larger, back country parcels, follow up with open space agencies, if 


R&P Districts are not interested.   
4. Engage broker to market remainder of unneeded properties. 


 
Since the April Board meeting, the Lands Management Committee has met, a field 
trip was taken to the Monte Rio properties and staff have discovered the existence of 
State legislation, the Surplus Lands Act, which directs the District to take certain 
steps in disposing of surplus property.   
 
Surplus Lands Act.  The Surplus Lands Act requires the District to make surplus 
lands available to public agencies prior to disposing of the lands to private parties.  
Coincidentally, that’s generally the strategy approved at the April meeting.  
Differences include direction on what public agencies need to be contacted – the list 
includes the Sonoma County Housing Authority, local school district, and County 







DISCUSSION/ACTION RE UNNEEDED DISTRICT LANDS 2   
May 6, 2010 
                                                                 
Parks, and the State Resources Agency, and these agencies have 60 days to 
respond.  Letters have been sent to these agencies in the past two weeks.   
 
Monte Rio Recreation and Parks District Meeting.  On April 4, the District’s Unneeded 
Lands Strategy was presented at the Monte Rio Recreation and Parks Meeting.  They 
are interested.  The District’s Master Plan includes plans for regional trails and they 
have interest in the river access parcel which is outside their current boundary.  
Parcel acquisition will likely need to wait until the boundary expansion effort is 
completed. 
 
Land Management Committee.  The Land Management Committee met on April 9 to 
discuss how to move forward.  The general agreement of the group was to put 
together a Board workshop: advertise in advance in local papers; solicit ideas, hold 
the workshop, select best approach(es).  The point of workshop would not be to get 
details, but rather to get best groups working on this. 
 
Field Trip to Monte Rio Parcels.  On April 15 members of the Land Management 
Committee took a filed trip to the larger parcels above the Monte Rio Terraces.  We 
drove to the Villa Grande Tank site and walked into District parcels on existing trails 
from there.  The existing trails are wide, fairly easy to traverse (not overgrown with 
brush), but steep in places.  We ran into other trail walkers who confirmed that the 
trails connect up with trails from the Sonoma Coast State Park (Figure 1).    


 
 


 







DISCUSSION/ACTION RE UNNEEDED DISTRICT LANDS 3   
May 6, 2010 
                                                                 


 


 


Sonoma Coast 
State Park 


District Parcels 


Figure 1. 
District Lands 
near Monte Rio 


 





		Meeting Date : May 6, 2010 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: May 6, 2010  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.  


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in March were 17,611 units 


(40.4 AF) and production was 57.3 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales 
and production are both less (42.3 and 63.2 AF, respectively).  System 
losses are staying in the 29% ranges where it has been since last June.  The 
attached Figure 1 shows the 12 month moving averages since 2001.   


 
3. Leaks:  The District spends much staff time addressing leaks and we have 


an extensive capital program to replace water mains to reduce leaks in the 
system.  In March we had 25 total leaks and spent 110 man-hours on them.   
That’s more leaks and man-hours than last month (February) and about the 
same as March one year ago (27 leaks, 103 man-hours.  Figure 2 shows 
leak history and man-hours spent dealing with leaks since 2001 and 
continues to show a declining trend for both leaks and man hours, although 
the last three months have not followed that trend.     


 
4. Rainfall.  Figure 3 is the rainfall chart for this year starting in October.  The 


data shown in this chart is approximate – I have a number of sources for 
Guerneville rainfall, all differ slightly.   I believe it’s approximately correct 
and gives us a decent picture about what’s going on this year.  April rainfall 
has been above average for the month.  January, of course, was the month 
that drove the good results for this year.   This remains a positive rainfall 
year.   We are not currently at average in Guerneville, according to my 
calculations, but the Russian River watershed is well hydrated, and the 
Russian River reservoirs are full. 


 
5. CIP IV-B, Project 1.  W.A. Forde Associates have marked the work areas 


on Riverlands Road and are expected to break ground soon. 







General Manager’s Report  2 of 4 
May 6, 2010 


 
6. CIP IV-B, Project 2.  Bid opening was on April 29, 2010.  An agenda report 


is scheduled for this meeting (Item V-B) for the award of contract.  
Construction is expected to start in July. 


 
7. Toilet Rebate Program.  8 toilet rebates were issued in April at a total cost 


of $1080.   
 


8. Gantt Chart.   May in the Gantt Chart shows that the budget and water 
rates should be adopted (on schedule, no change to water rates), 
construction happening for CIP IV-B, Project 1 (started April 19), and labor 
negotiations continuing (that is happening).     


  
 


  


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Average
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


May-
01


Nov-01 May-
02


Nov-02 May-
03


Nov-03 May-
04


Nov-04 May-
05


Nov-05 May-
06


Nov-06 May-
07


Nov-07 May-
08


Nov-08 May-
09


Nov-09


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


40.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 


Sales
Production
%Difference


A
F)


(


)
%(


 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 4 
May 6, 2010 


 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Total Pipeline Breaks 
and Hours Spent in Repair, Moving Annual Average


200


250


300


350


400


450


500
B


re
ak


s


1,400


1,750


2,100


2,450


2,800


3,150


3,500


H
ou


rs


Total Breaks
Total Hours
Linear (Total Hours)
Linear (Total Breaks)


-


50


100


150


Dec
-00


Apr-
01


Aug
-01


Dec
-01


Apr-
02


Aug
-02


Dec
-02


Apr-
03


Aug
-03


Dec
-03


Apr-
04


Aug
-04


Dec
-04


Apr-
05


Aug
-05


Dec
-05


Apr-
06


Aug
-06


Dec
-06


Apr-
07


Aug
-07


Dec
-07


Apr-
08


Aug
-08


Dec
-08


Apr-
09


Aug
-09


Dec
-09


-


350


700


1,050


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ary


Feb
rua


ry
Marc


h
Apri


l
May


Ju
ne Ju


ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
tem


be
r


Pr
ec


ip
ita


tio
n


 (i
n)


GV 2009
Guerneville Avg
GV 2010







Jun-09 Jul-09 Aug-09 Sep-09 Oct-09 Nov-09 Dec-09 Jan-10 Feb-10 Mar-10 Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 2011 2012
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease Completed
2009 Water Rates Revision Completed
2009 Water Rates Changes


•        Board Direction on Rate Changes
•        Prop 218 Mailing
•        Public Hearing on Proposed Rates
•        Adopt Rates with Budget


2009-10 Budget preparation Completed
2010-11 Budget preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Discussion 


December-10


•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April-10


•        Approve Budget May-10
Capital Projects


•        CIP IV-A, Project 1 Completion Completed, 
June 09


•        CIP IV-A, Project 2 Construction Start May-09
•        CIP IV-A, Project 2 Completion October-09
•        Phase IV-B Design January-09
•        Presentation of CIP Phase IV-B for Board 
Discussion/Action


February-09


•        RRROC for CIP IV-B July-09
•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Starts


April-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Completed


October-10


2010 Urban Water Management Plan December-10


Water Rights Completed, 
License June 


Contract Negotiations 
•        Start Negotiations Preparation December-09
•        Negotiations Start April-10
•        End of Contract June-10


Building Lease
•        Lease Ends July-11


Policies and Procedures
•        Capacity Charge Policy
•        Budget Reserve Policy
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and Objectives July-10


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 





		Meeting Date: May 6, 2010 



